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To OUR SHAREHOLDERS_

Corporation

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We are pleased to report that in
2003 several new records were
established including new highs
for net operating income, total
assets, deposits, loans and capital.
2003 was also a year for celebration
as we recognized two milestones
at our affiliate banks; First
National Bank celebrated 100 years of service to Ames,
and Randall-Story State Bank marked its 75th anniversary.
In addition, it was a special year as we honored four long-

Daniel L. Krieger

time employees of our organization including Robert W.
Stafford, the Company’s retiring chairman for his nearly
50 years of service to the banking industry.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings increased 2% to a record $11,625,000 or $ 3.71
per share compared to $11,340,000 or $3.63 per share
earned in 2002. The slightly higher 2003 earnings were
aided by both gains on securities and secondary market
loan fees. Return on average assets for 2003 was 1.60%
compared to 1.78% for 2002. Return on average equity
for 2003 was 11.16% compared to 11.54% for the
previous year.

Total assets increased 11% to a record $752,786,000
which was $75,558,000 higher than year end 2002.
The majority of the increase was originated by United
Bank & Trust, Marshalltown, Towa, which began operation
in mid-2002.

Deposits grew a healthy 13% over 2002 ending the year
at a record $619,549,000. Most affiliate banks’ deposits
were higher with United Bank & Trust the major contrib-
utor with a $36,997,000 increase over year end 2002. All
deposit categories had significant growth in 2003.

)
£

Loans rose 8% to a record $355,533,000 with commercial
real estate lending registering the most gain. The seasoned
group of officers and staff at United Bank & Trust proved
their ability in generating new loans by increasing its loan
portfolio by over $22 million in 2003.

Capital, including $8,916,000 in unrealized gains on secu-
rities, rose to a record $107,325,000 compared to
$101,523,000 on December 31, 2002, which included
$7,819,000 in unrealized gains. The capital to assets ratio
was 14.26% at the end of 2003.

This past year Company stock, listed under the symbol
ATLO, had a low of $46.05 and a high of $59.75 and
ended the year at $58.25. Dividends paid in 2003 totaled
$2.26 per share which compares to $2.16 per share paid
in 2002. Both years included a special dividend of $.46
per share in 2003 and $.44 per share in 2002.

We were very pleased with the progress our new bank,
United Bank & Trust, Marshalltown, lowa made in its first
full year of operation. It exceeded all projections with
over $62 million in deposits, $38 million in loans and $68
million in total assets as of December 31, 2003. After
only 18 months in business, we feel that it is well on its
way to showing a profit in 2004. The Bank’s staff is to be
congratulated for their dedication in introducing this new
financial institution to the Marshalltown community.

OUR PEOPLE

During the 2003 Annual Meeting dinner, we had the
opportunity to recognize four retiring employees for their
dedication to Ames National Corporation — Robert W.
Stafford, Dale F. Collings, Edward C. Jacobson and
Michael J. Flynn.
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Robert W. Stafford, pictured here
at the Annual Meeting Dinner, was
honored for his many contributions
over his long and illustrious career
with First National Bank and Ames
National Corporation. It was espe-
cially interesting to be able to share
with the audience his World War II
record of service which was chroni-
cled in a new book, A Neighborhood of Eagles, which inci-
dentally, came off the press the day of the annual meeting.

Dale F. Collings, former President and director of State
Bank & Trust, Nevada, lowa, retired from the Company
board and was honored for his service and many contri-
butions to the Bank and the Company during his 47 years
of service.

Edward C. Jacobson, Vice President and Treasurer of the
Company and Senior Vice President of First National
Bank was honored for his 39 years of service as an
employee and officer of both the Bank and Ames National
Corporation where he played an important part in the
success of both organizations.

Michael J. Flynn, Vice President of First National Bank,
was honored for his 36 years-as an employee and officer
of the Bank. His expertise was in lending where he
enjoyed serving his many loyal customers during his
career at the Bank.

Two new directors were elected to the Company board in
2003 to replace Robert W. Stafford and Dale F. Collings
who retired. Robert L. Cramer, president of Fareway
Stores, Inc. an 82 store grocery chain in lowa and
Nebraska and Warren R. Madden, Vice President for
Business and Finance at lowa State University have
proven to be excellent additions to our dedicated group of
directors.

With the election of Steve McGill as President of State
Bank & Trust and Harold Thompson as President of
Randall-Story State Bank we are fortunate to have two
individuals who are familiar with our organization, and
along with the other three affiliate bank presidents, will
help our Company attain future success.
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THE YEAR AHEAD

Company board members and Company staff, along with
affiliate bank presidents, met in the last quarter of 2003
to update the Company Strategic Plan. New emphasis is
being placed on capital management, marketing and
human resources, all of which directly affect our share-
holders, our customers and our employees. We will devel-
op strategies to address these and other important issues
as we move into 2004,

Growing our Company is a high priority, and we will con-
tinue to address this issue. However, growth should be
planned in a manner which will enhance shareholder
value. We are committed to following the core values of
our corporate culture as a growth-oriented financial serv-
ices holding company. This means we must be innovative,
flexible and honest in our dealings with customers,
employees and shareholders and maintain local decision
making in our banking locations.

It will be interesting to watch interest rate movements as
the Federal Reserve has indicated it is no longer commit-
ted to keeping rates at the historically low levels experi-
enced over the past two years. With the stock market test-
ing highs not seen for some time and bond yields remain-
ing near their lows, the investment scene could change
materially this year. A key to the strength of an economic
recovery could very well be the magnitude of job creation.

SPECIAL THANKS

We send a genuine thank you to our shareholders for their
support in our ongoing efforts to be the best community
banking organization in lowa. Additional thanks goes to our
many customers for allowing our five affiliate banks the
opportunity to provide them with financial services over
this past year. And we are especially grateful for our hard
working boards of directors who provide our Company
and affiliate banks with valuable guidance and counsel.

Sincerely, /
Daniel L. Krieger
Chairman & President
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Comporation
P COMPANY DIRECTORS

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Robert L. Cramer President & Chief Operating Officer ~ Fareway Stores, Inc., Douglas €. Gustafson Veterinarian - Boone

Veterinary Hospital, Warren R. Madden Vice President for Business & Finance — lowa State University, Daniel L. Krieger

Chairman & President of the Compeny, and James R, Larson, Il Chief Financial Officer - ACI Mechanical

FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
James R. Christy Chairman - State Bank & Trust Co., Belty A. Baudler President ~ Baudler Enterprises, inc., Charles D. Jons,
M.D. Independent Medical Consuliant, and Marvin J. Walter President — Dayton Road Development Corporation
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COMPANY STAFF P

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Timothy J. Lupardus Asst. Vice President & Information Systems Manager, Tracy W. Laws Asst. Vice President & Auditor,
John P. Nelson Vice President, Kevin G. Deardorff Vice President & Technology Director, and Matthew R. Hackbart Asst.

Information Systems Manager

FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Jackd L. Foley Vice President, Daniel L. Krieger Chairman & President, and Lovi J. Mill Executive Secretary
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Ames National Corporation (the “Company”) is an lowa corpora-
tion and bank holding company registered under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended. The Company owns 100% of
the stock of five banking subsidiaries consisting of two national
banks and three state-chartered banks, as described below. All of
the Company's operations are conducted in the State of lowa and
primarily within the central lowa counties of Boone, Story and
Marshall where the Company’s banking subsidiaries are located.
The Company does not engage in any material business activities
apart from its ownership of its banking subsidiaries. The principal
executive offices of the Company are located at 405 Fifth Street,
Ames, Towa 30010. The Company’s telephone number is
(515) 232-6251.

The Company was organized in 1975 to serve as a holding com-
pany for its principal banking subsidiary, First National Bank,
Ames, Jlowa (“First National”) located in Ames, Jowa. In 1983,
the Company acquired the stock of the State Bank & Trust Co.
(“State Bank”) located in Nevada, Iowa; in 1991, the
Company, through a newly-chartered state bank known as
Boone Bank & Trust Co. (“Boone Bank”), acquired certain
assets and assumed certain liabilities of the former Boone State
Bank & Trust Company located in Boone, lIowa; in 1995, the
Company acquired the stock of the Randall-Story State Bank
(“Randall-Story Bank") located in Story City, lowa; and in
2002, the Company chartered and commenced operations of a
new national ‘banking organization, United Bank & Trust NA
(“United Bank”), located in Marshalltown, Iowa. First
National, State Bank, Boone Bank, Randall-Story Bank and
United Bank are each operated as a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. These five financial institutions are referred to
in this Report collectively as the “Banks” and individually

as a “Bank”.

The principal sources of Company revenue are: (i) interest and
fees earned on loans made by the Banks; (ii) service charges on
deposit accounts maintained at the Banks; (iii) interest on fixed
income investments held by the Banks; (iv] fees on trust serv-

ices provided by those Banks exercising trust powers; and (v)

| ﬂ\
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COMPANY INFORMATION.

securities gains and dividends on equity investments held by

the Company and the Banks.

The Banks' lending activities consist primarily of short-term and
medium-term commercial and residential real estate loans,
agricultural and business operating loans and lines of credit,
equipment loans, vehicle loans, personal loans and lines of credit,
home improvement loans and secondary mortgage loan
origination. The Banks also offer a variety of demand, savings and
time deposits, cash management services, merchant credit card
processing, safe deposit boxes, wire transfers, direct deposit of
payroll and social security checks and automated teller machine
and Internet Banking access. Four of the five Banks also offer

trust services.

The Company provides various services to the Banks which
include, but are not limited to, management assistance,
auditing services, human resources services and administra-
tion, compliance management, marketing assistance and
coordination, loan review and assistance with information

systems management.

AFFILIATE BANKS

First National Bank, Ames, Iowa, (“First National”}. First
National is a nationally chartered, commercial bank insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). Tt
was organized in 1903 and became a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company in 1975 through a bank holding company reor-
ganization whereby the then shareholders of First National
exchanged all of their First National stock for stock in the
Company. First National provides full-service banking to busi-
nesses and residents within the Ames community and sur-
rounding area. It provides a variety of products and services
designed to meet the needs of the market it serves. It has an
experienced staff of bank officers including many who have
spent the majority of their banking careers with First National
and who emphasize long-term customer relationships. First
National conducts business out of three full-service offices and

one supermarket location, all located in the city of Ames.



As of December 31, 2003, First Naticnal had capital of
$40,031,000 and 96 full-time equivalent employees. Full-time
equivalents represent the number of people a business would
employ if all its employees were employed on a full-time basis.
It is calculated by dividing the total number of hours worked
by all full and part-time employees by the number of hours a
full-time individual would work for a given period of time.
First National had net income of $6,621,000 in 2003,
$6,294,000 in 2002 and $5,834,000 in 2001. Total assets as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $381,086,000,
$375,341,000 and $349,702,000, respectively.

State Bank & Trust Co., Nevada, lowa, (“State Bank”). State
Bank is an Iowa, state-chartered, FDIC insured commercial
bank. State Bank was acquired by the Company in 1983 through
a stock transaction whereby the then shareholders of State Bank
exchanged all their State Bank stock for stock in the Company.
State Bank was organized in 1939 and provides full-service bank-
ing to businesses and residents within the Nevada area from its
main Nevada location and two offices; one in McCallsburg, lowa
and the other in Colo, lowa. Its primary focus is agricultural,

commercial and residential real estate lending.

As of December 31, 2003, State Bank had capital of
$11,230,000 and 23 full-time equivalent employees. It had net
income of $1,554,000 in 2003, $1,501,000 in 2002 and
$1,294,000 in 2001. Total assets as of December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, were $100,712,000, $104,079,000 and
$94,004,000, respectively.

Boone Bank & Trust Co., Boone, Iowa, {“Boone Bank”). Boone
Bank is an lowa, state-chartered, FDIC insured commercial
bank. Bocne Bank was organized in 1992 by the Company
under a new state charter in connection with a purchase and
assumption transaction whereby Boone Bank purchased cer-
tain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the former Boone
State Bank & Trust Company in exchange for a cash payment.
It provides full-service banking to businesses and residents
within the Boone community and surrounding area. It is
actively engaged in agricultural, consumer and commercial
lending, including real estate, operating and equipment loans.
It conducts business from its main office and a full-service

branch office, both located in Boone.
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As of December 31, 2003, Boone Bank had capital of
$12,128,000 and 27 full-time equivalent employees. It had net
income of $1,920,000 in 2003, $1,827,000 in 2002 and
$1,302,000 in 2001. Total assets as of December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, were $110,712,000, $96,829,000 and
$94,356,000, respectively.

Randall-Story State Bank, Story City, lowa, (“Randall-Story
Bank™). Randall-Story Bank is an lowa, state-chartered, FDIC
insured commercial bank. Randall-Story Bank was acquired by
the Company in 1995 through a stock transaction whereby the
then shareholders of Randall-Story Bank exchanged all their
Randall-Story Bank stock for stock in the Company. Randall-
Story Bank was organized in 1928 and provides full-service
banking to Story City and the surrounding area from its main
location in Story City and a full service office in Randall, Towa.
While its primary emphasis is in agricultural lending, Randall-
Story Bank also provides the traditional lending services typi-

cally offered by community banks.

As of December 31, 2003, Randall-Story Bank had capital of
$7,759,000 and 15 full-time equivalent employees. It had net
income of $810,000 in 2003, $1,009,000 in 2002 and
$692,000 in 2001. Total assets as of December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, were $72,581,000, $64,946,000 and $63,680,000,

respectively.

United Bank & Trust NA, Marshalltown, lowa, (“United
Bank”). United Bank is a nationally chartered, commercial
bank insured by the FDIC. It was chartered in June of 2002
and offers a broad range of deposit and loan products as well
as trust services to customers located in the Marshalltown and

surrounding Marshall County area.

As of December 31, 2003, United Bank had capital of
$4,959,000 and 16 full-time equivalent employees. It had a
net loss in 2003 of $465,000 and for the six and one-half
month period ended December 31, 2002, a loss of $524,000.
Total assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, were
$68,397,000 and $30,355,000, respectively.

7
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LEFT TO RIGHT
Stephen C. Me@Gill, State Bank & Trust Co.; Jeffrey K. Putzier, Boone Bank & Trust Co.; Thomas M. Pohlman, First National
Bank, Ames; Leo E. Herrick, United Bank & Trust; and Hareld F. Thempsen, Randall-Story State Bank

/
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&TRUST CO.

STFIRST
1 NATIONAL
BANK .
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RANDALL-STORY
STATE BANK

STATE BANK & TrusT CoO.

a

TN

UNITED BANK & TRUST !

Locations:

Main Office

716 8th St. * Boone
Branch Office

1326 S. Story St. * Boone

www.boonebankiowa.com

Locations;

Main Office

405 5th St. * Ames
University Office

2330 Lincoln Way ¢ Ames
Cub Foods Office

3121 Grand Ave. * Ames
North Grand Office
2406 Grand * Ames

www.FINBames.com

Locations:

Main Office

606 E. Broad ¢ Story City
Branch Office

450 Main St. * Randall

www.randallstory.com

Locations:

Main Office

1025 6th St. * Nevada
McCallsburg Office

425 Main St. « McCallsburg
Colo Office

405 Main St. * Colo

www.banksbt.com

Locations:
Main Office
2101 S. Center St. » Marshalltown

www.ubtna.com

Directors:

Richard Blomgren

Robert L. Cramer

Douglas C. Gustafson, DVM
Daniel L. Krieger

Directors:

Betty A. Baudler
Charles D. Jons, MD
Daniel L. Krieger
James R. Larson II
Thomas H. Pohlman

Directors:

Steven D. Forth
Edward C. Jacobson
Orley L. Kilburn
David L. Morris

Directors:

James R. Christy
Gary W. Clem
James G. Frevert
Curtis A. Hoff

Directors:

Keith R. Brown
Leo E. Herrick
Daniel L. Krieger
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Patrick J. McMullan
Jeffrey K. Putzier
William S. Zinnel

Richard J. Roseland
David G. Topel
Marvin J. Walter
Terrill L. Wycoff

Elaine C. Tekippe
Harold E. Thompson
Gary G. Vulgamott

Steven C. McGill
Richard O. Parker
Fred C. Samuelson
Terrill L. Wycoff

Larry A. Raymon
Kevin L. Swartz
John S. Wise
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Five-YEAR PERFORMANCE RECORD
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Return on Average Assets 1.60% 1.78%  1.71% 1.46% 1.74%
Return on Average Equity 11.2% 11.5% 11.5% 11.4% 12.9%
Dividend Yield 3.9% 4.7% 4.2% 29%  2.7%
Efficiency Ratio 47.2% 44.6%  41.9% 44.8% 42.9%

Five-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

99 00 01 02 O3 ‘89 00 01 02’03 99 00 01 02 03

Average Deposits Average Loans Average Total Assets
(millions) (millions) $3426 (millions}

99 00 01 02 03 ‘93 00 01 02 03 99 00 01 02 03
Earnings Per Share Book Value Per Share Dividends Per Share
(dollars) (doliars) (dollars)
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The following financial data of the Company for the five years ended December 31, 2003, through 1999, is derived from the Company'’s
historical audited financial statements and related footnotes. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” and the consolidated financial statements and
related notes contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts}) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA : | |

Interest Income . $35,314 ‘ $36,270 o $41,474 $44,018 $40,361
Interest expense . 10,339 11,663 : 18,883 24,261 | 19,981
Net interest income 24975 24,607 22591 19,757 | 20,380
Provision for loan losses ; 645 688 ; 898 460 166
Net interest income after provision for loan losses : 24,330 23,919 : 21,693 19,297 20,214
Noninterest income 1 6,435 5135 j 5,080 4,130 5,750
Noninterest expense 14,819 . 13,276 ‘ 11,587 10,712 : 11,208
Income before provision for income tax » 15,946 15,778 : 15,186 12,715 14,756
Provision for income tax ‘ 4,321 4,438 4,639 3,596 4,429
Net Income $11,625 $11,340 $10,547 $9,119 $10,327

DIVIDENDS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

Cash dividends declared $7,142 $6,820 $5,187 $4,932 $4,664
Cash dividends declared per share $2.28 $2.18 $1.66 $1.58 $1.50
Basic and diluted earnings per share $3.71 $3.63 $3.38 $2.92 $3.31
Weighted average shares outstanding 3,131,224 3,127,285 3,123,885 3,120,375 3,118,427
BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total assets $752,786 $677,229 $622,280 $619,385 $605,881
Net loans 355,533 329,593 323,043 344,015 309,652
Deposits 619,549 550,622 511,509 493,429 484,620
Stockholders' equity 107,325 101,523 93,622 86,177 76,073
Equity to assets ratio 14.26% 14.99% 15.04% 13.91% 12.56%

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Net income $11,625 $11,340 $10,547 $9,119 $10,327
Average assets 726,945 635,816 616,971 626,560 594,441
Average stockholders' equity 104,141 98,282 91,373 80,081 80,074
Return on assets (net income divided by average assets) 1.60% 1.78% 1.71% 1.46% 1.74%
Return on equity (net income divided by average equity) 11.16% 11.54% 11.54% 11.39% 12.90%
Efficiency ratio (noninterest expense divided by ,

noninterest income plus net interest income) 47.18% 44.64% 41.87% 44.84% 42.89%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share

divided by net income per share) 61.46% 60.05% 49.11% 54.11% 45.32%
Dividend yield (dividends per share divided by

closing year-end market price) 391% 4.69% 4.15% 2.87% 2.73%
Equity to assets ratio (average equity divided

by average assets) . 14.33% 15.46% 14.81% 12.78% 13.47%
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OVERVIEW

Ames National Corporation (Company) is a bank holding com-
pany established in 1973 that owns and operates five bank sub-
sidiaries (Banks) in central Iowa. The following discussion is pro-
vided for the consolidated operations of the Company and its
Banks, First National, State Bank, Boone Bank, Randall-Story
Bank and United Bank. The purpose of this discussion is to focus
on significant factors affecting the Company’s financial condi-

tion and results of operations.

The Company does not engage in any material business activities
apart from its ownership of Banks. Products and services offered
by the Banks are for commercial and consumer purposes includ-
ing loans, deposits and trust services. The Banks also offer
investment services through a third-party broker dealer. The
Company employs eight individuals to assist with financial
reporting, human resources, audit, compliance, technology sys-
tems and the coordination of management activities, in addition

to 177 full-time equivalent individuals employed by the Banks.

The Company’s primary competitive strategy is to utilize sea-
soned and competent Bank management and local decision mak-
ing authority to provide customers with faster response times
and more flexibility in the products and services offered. This
strategy is viewed as providing an opportunity to increase rev-
enues through creating a competitive advantage over other
financial institutions. The Company also strives to remain oper-
ationally efficient to provide better profitability while enabling

the Company to offer more competitive loan and deposit rates.

The principal sources of Company revenues and cashflow are:
(i) interest and fees earned on loans made by the Banks; (ii)
service charges on deposit accounts maintained at the Banks;
(iii) interest on fixed income investments held by the Banks; (iv)
fees on trust services provided by those Banks exercising trust
powers; and (v) securities gains and dividends on equity invest-
ments held by the Company and the Banks. The Company’s
principal expenses are: (i) interest expense on deposit accounts

and other borrowings; (i) salaries and employee benefits; (iii)

data processing costs associated with maintaining the Bank’s loan
and deposit functions; and (iv) occupancy expenses for main-
taining the Banks' facilities. The largest component contributing
to the Company’s net income is net interest income, which is
the difference between interest earned on earning assets (pri-
marily loans and investments) and interest paid on interest bear-
ing liabilities (primarily deposits and other borrowings). One of
management’s principal functions is to manage the spread
between interest earned on earning assets and interest paid on
interest bearing liabilities in an effort to maximize net interest
income while maintaining an appropriate level of interest rate

risk.

The Company reported record net income of $11,625,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $11,340,000 and
$10,547,000 reported for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. This represents an increase of 2.5% when
comparing 2003 and 2002, and an increase of 7.5% when com-
paring 2002 and 2001. The improvement in net income for 2003
can be attributed primarily to higher net interest income, second-
ary market income and security gains. The gain in earnings in 2002
over 2001 relates primarily to much lower interest expense in
2002. Earnings per share for 2003 were a record $3.71 compared
to $3.63 in 2002 and $3.38 in 2001. United Bank, which com-
menced operation in June of 2002, is expected to be profitable in
2004 in contrast to the $465,000 loss posted in 2003. The other

four Banks continued profitable operations during 2003.

The Company’s return on average equity for 2003 was 11.16%
versus 11.54% in both 2002 and 2001. The decline in return on
average equity is primarily the result of a higher average level of
equity in 2003 relating to net unrealized gains on securities avail-
able for sale. The average net unrealized gain on securities avail-
able for sale was $8,287,000 in 2003 as compared to $6,225,000
in 2002. The Company’s return on average assets for 2003 was
1.60% compared to 1.78% in 2002 and 1.71% in 2001. The
decline in the return on average assets in 2003 can be attributa-
ble to growth in assets and the operating loss generated by

United Bank as a newly chartered bank.
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The following management discussion and analysis will provide a

summary review of important items relating to:

* Challenges

» Key Performance Indicators and Industry Results
* Income Statement Review

¢ Balance Sheet Review .

* Asset Quality and Credit Risk Management

* Liquidity and Capital Resources

* Interest Rate Risk

* Inflation

Forward-Looking Statements

CHALLENGES

Management has identified certain challenges that may negative-
ly impact Company's revenues in the future and is attempting to

position the Company to best respond to those challenges.

* Interest rates at historic lows may present a challenge to the
Company by increasing the possibility of a rapid increase in
interest rates. Such an increase may negatively impact the
Company’s net interest margin if interest expense increases
more quickly than interest income. The Company’s earning
assets (primarily its loan and investment portfolio) have
longer maturities than its interest bearing liabilities (prima-
rily deposits and other borrowings); therefore, in a rising
interest rate environment, interest expense will increase
more quickly than interest income as the interest bearing
liabilities reprice more quickly than earning assets. In
response to this challenge, the Banks model quarterly the
changes in income that would result from various changes in
interest rates. Management believes Bank assets have the
appropriate maturity and repricing characteristics to opti-

mize earnings and the Banks' interest rate risk positions.

* The volume of mortgage loan refinancing is expected to
decline in 2004. This slowdown will have a negative impact

on the Company’s noninterest income as the refinancing

Ames
National
Corporation

activity generated record fee income of $1,155,000 in 2003.
The Banks are focusing more attention on relationships with
local real estate agents in an effort to expand the mortgage
loan fees derived from home purchases as refinancing activ-

ity begins to diminish.

* The Company’s market in central lowa has numerous
banks, credit unions, investment and insurance companies
competing for similar business opportunities. This competi-
tive environment will continue to put downward pressure
on the Banks’ net interest margins and thus affect prof-
itability. Activities the Company is undertaking to address
this challenge include additional focus on improving cus-
tomer service, packaging products to provide more conven-
ience for customers, and remaining operationally efficient to

maintain profitability with lower net interest margins.

* A potential challenge to the Company's earnings would be
poor performance in the Company’s equity portfolio, thereby
reducing the historical level of realized security gains. The
Company invests capital that may be utilized for future expan-
sion in a portfolio of primarily financial and utility stocks total-
ing nearly $25 million as of December 31, 2003. The
Company focuses on stocks that have historically paid divi-

dends that may lessen the negative effects of a bear market.

Key PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
AND INDUSTRY RESULTS

Certain key performance indicators for the Company and the
industry are presented in the following chart. The industry fig-
ures are compiled by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and are derived from 9,182 commercial banks and sav-
ings institutions insured by the FDIC. Management reviews
these indicators on a quarterly basis for purposes of comparing
the Company’s performance from quarter to quarter and to
determine how the Company's operations compare to the indus-

try as a whole.
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SELECTED INDICATORS FOR THE COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRY

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Company Industry Company Industry Company Industry
Return on assets 1.60% 1.38% 1.78% 1.30% 1.71% 1.14%
Return on equity 11.16% 15.04% 11.54% 14.14% 11.54% 12.97%
Net interest margin 4.02% 3.73% 4.51% 3.96% 4.19% 3.78%
Efficiency ratio 47.18% 56.59% 44.64% 56.00% 41.87% 57.72%
Capital ratio 14.33% 7.88% 15.46% 7.87% 14.81% 7.78%

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

* Return on Assets

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average
assets. It is used to measure how effectively the assets of the
Company are being utilized in generating income. Although
the Company’s return on assets ratio compares favorably to
that of the industry, this ratio declined in 2003 as compared
to 2002 as assets grew more quickly in relation to net income,

primarily as the result of the growth at United Bank.

Return on Equity

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average
equity. It is used to measure the net income or return the
Company generated for the shareholders’ equity investment
in the Company. The Company’s return on equity ratio is
below that of the industry primarily as a result of the higher
level of capital the Company maintains for future growth and
acquisitions. The Company’s return on equity is trending
downward as a result of its increasing total equity capital. In
1999, total equity capital totaled‘$76,073,000 (including a
net unrealized loss on securities available for sale of
$2,026,000) compared to December 31, 2003 total equity
capital of $107,325,000 (including net unrealized gains on
securities of $8,916,000).
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Net Interest Margin

This ratio is calculated by dividing net interest income by
average earning assets. Earning assets are primarily made up
of loans and investments that earn interest. This ratio is used
to measure how well the Company is able to maintain inter-
est rates on earning assets above those of interest-bearing lia-
bilities, which is the interest expense paid on deposits and
other borrowings. The Company’s net interest margin com-
pares favorably to the industry; however, management expects
the competitive nature of the Company’s market environ-

ment to put downward pressure on the Company’s margin.
Efficiency Ratio

This ratio is calculated by dividing noninterest expense by net
interest income and noninterest income. The ratio is a meas-
ure of the Company’s ability to manage noninterest expenses.
The Company’s efficiency ratio compares favorably to the
industry’s average. The costs associated with chartering

United Bank have increased the ratio the past two years.
Capital Ratio

The capital ratio is calculated by dividing total equity capital
by total assets. It measures the level of average assets that are

funded by shareholders’ equity. Given an equal level of risk

Al 5Q(.°
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in the financial condition of two companies, the higher the
capital ratio, generally the more financially sound the company.
The Company’s capital ratio is significantly higher than the

industry average.

INDUSTRY REsuLTS

The FDIC Quarterly Banking Profile reported the following
results for the fourth quarter of 2003:

Led by rising income at credit-card lenders and large commer-
cial banks, the 9,182 commercial banks and savings institutions
insured by the FDIC reported r‘ecord-high earnings in the fourth
quarter of 2003, the fourth consecutive quarter that industry
earnings have set a record. Net income totaled $31.1 billion, an
increase of $755 million (2.5%) over the third quarter, and $5.7
billion (22.3%) more than the industry earned in the fourth
quarter of 2002. The average return on assets was 1.38%, up
from 1.36% in the third quarter, and well above the 1.22% of a
year earlier. The greatest improvement in profitability occurred
at large institutions, whose earnings had been depressed by cred-
it losses on loans to large corporate borrowers and by weakness
in market-sensitive noninterest revenues. Fewer than half of all
institutions (45.0%) reported a return on assets of 1% or higher
for the quarter. Slightly more than half (52.7%) reported
increased net income compared to the fourth quarter of 2002,

but only 45.4% reported higher quarterly return on assets.

INCOME STATEMENT REVIEW

The following highlights a comparative discussion of the major com-

ponents of net income and their impact for the last three years.

Ames
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CrimicAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This discussion and other disclosures included within this report are
based on the Company's audited consolidated financial statements.
These statements have been prepared in accordance with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The financial information contained in these statements is, for the
most part, based on the financial effects of transactions and events
that have already occurred. However, the preparation of these
statements requires management to make certain estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, rev-
enues and expenses. The Company’s significant accounting policies
are described in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
accompanying the Company’s audited financial statements. Based
on its consideration of accounting policies that involve the most
complex and subjective estimates and judgments, management has
identified its most critical accounting policy to be that related to the
allowance for loan losses. The allowance for loan losses is estab-
lished through a provision for loan losses that is treated as an
expense and charged against earnings. Loans are charged against the
allowance for loan losses when management believes that col-
lectibility of the principal is unlikely. The Company has policies and
procedures for evaluating the overall credit quality of its loan port-
folio, including timely identification of potential problem loans. On
a quarterly basis, management reviews the appropriate level for the
allowance for loan losses incorporating a variety of risk considera-
tions, both quantitative and qualitative. Quantitative factors include
the Company’s historical loss experience, delinquency and charge-
off trends, collateral values, known information about individual
loans and other factors. Qualitative factors include the general eco-
nomic environment in the Company’s market area and the expect-
ed trend of the economic conditions. To the extent actual results
differ from forecasts and management’s judgment, the allowance

for loan losses may be greater or lesser than future charge-offs.
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AvERAGE BaALANCES AND [NTEREST RATES

The following two tables are used to calculate the Company’s net interest margin. The first table includes the Company's aver-
age assets and the related income to determine the average yield on earning assets. The second table includes the average liabili-
ties and related expense to determine the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest margin is equal to the
interest income less the interest expense divided by average earning assets.

A33ETS
(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
. Average Revenue Yield/. Average Revenue Yield/ ' Average Revenue Yield/
. balance rate . balance rate balance rate
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Loans ‘
Commercial . $38,288  $2,163 5.65% $42,948 $3,042 7.08% $49,081 $4,107 8.37%.
Agricultural 25,962 1,783 6.87% 25,274 1,895 7.50% 28,302 2,492 881%
Real estate 264,494 16,909 6.39% 229,805 16,929 7.37% 240,382 19,458 8.09%
Consumer and other 21,068 1,342 6.37% 19,494 1,341 6.88% 23,675 1,834 7.75%
Total loans (including fees) $349,812 $22,197 6.35% $317,521 $23,207 7.31% $341,440 $27,891 R8.17%
Investment Securities
Taxable $162,273  $7,925 4.88% $142,089 $8,414 592% $146,213 $9,303 6.36%
Tax-exempt 101,482 6,820 6.72% 78,171 5,797 7.42% 68,001 5210 7.66%
Total investment securities $263,755 $14,745 5.59% $220,260 $14,211 6.45% $214,214 $14,513 6.78%
Interest bearing deposits with banks $4,511 $62 1.37% $534 $14 2.62% $251 $13  5.18%
Federal funds sold 60,293 628 1.04% 51,206 810 1.58% 25,953 829 3.19%
Total Interest-earning assets $678,371 $37,632 5.55% $589,521 $38,242 6.49% $581,858 $43,246 7.43%
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $27,733 $28,206 $21,040
Premises and equipment, net 8,599 7,912 5,892
Other, less allowance for loan losses 12,242 10,177 8,181
Total noninterest-earning assets $48,574 $46,295 $35,113
TOTAL ASSETS $726,945 $635,816 $616,971

1 Average loan balance includes nonaccrual loans, if any. Interest income collected on nonaccrual loans has been included.
2 Tax-exempt income has been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using an incremental tax rate of 34%.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001
| Average Revenue/ Yield/! Average Revenue/ Yield/ Average Revenue/ Yield/|
balance expense rate | balance expense rate balance expense rate
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES - |
Deposits " 1
Savings, NOW accounts, ‘
and money markets $298,885  $2,738 0.92% $260,426  $3,393 1.30% $228,908  $5,727 2.50%
Time deposits < $100,000 170,534 5,480 3.21%. 152,703 6,107 4.00% 158,625 8,736  5.51%
Time deposits > $100,000 65,759 1,807 2.75% 51,428 1,898 3.69% 58,253 3,329 5.71%
Total deposits $535,178 $10,045 1.88% $464,557 $11,398 2.45% $445,786 $17,792 3.99%
Other borrowed funds 19,588 293 1.50% 13,887 265 1.91% 23,008 1,091 4.74%

Total Interest-bearing liabilities $554,766  $10,338 1.86% $478,444 $11,663 2.44% $468,794 $18,883 4.03%

NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Demand deposits $59,614 $53,318 $51,113
Other liabilities 8,424 5,772 5,691
Stockholders’ equity $104,141 $98,282 $91,373

ToraL LIABILITIES AND

SrockHOLDERS' EQuUITY $726,945 $635,816 $616,971

Net interest income $27,294 4.02% $26,579 4.51% $24,363 4.19%
Spread Analysis: - -

Interest income/average assets $37,632 5.18% $38,242 6.01% $43,246  7.01%
Interest expense/average assets 10,338 1.42% 11,663 1.83% 18,883  3.06%
Net interest income/average assets 27,294 3.76% 26,579 4.18% 24,363  3.95%
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Rare AND VOLUME ANALYSIS

The rate and volume analysis is used to determine how much of the change in interest income or expense is the result of a change
in volume or a change in interest rate. For example, real estate interest income decreased $20,000 in 2003 compared to 2002. An

increased volume of real estate loans added $2,384,000 in income in 2003, however, lower interest rates reduced interest income

in 2003 by $2,404,000, a net difference of $20,000.

2003 Compared to 2002

2002 Compared to 2001

(dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
INTEREST EARNING ASSETS
Loans:
Commercial ($307) ($572) (5879) ($477) ($588) ($1,065)
Agricultural 50 (162) (112) (250) (347) (597)
Real estate 2,384 (2,404) (20) (336) (1,693) (2,529)
Consumer and other 104 (103) 1 (301) (192) (493)
Total loans (including fees) $2,231 ($3,241) ($1,010) ($1,864) ($2,820) ($4,684)
Investment securities:
Taxable $1,103 ($1,592) (3489) ($257) ($632) ($889)
Tax-exempt 1,608 (585) 1,023 755 (168) 587
Total investment securities $2,711 ($2,177) $534 $498 ($800) ($302)
Interest bearing deposits with banks $58 ($10) $48 $10 ($9) $1
Federal funds sold 127 (309) (182) 538 (557) (19)
Total Interest-earning assets $5,127 ($5,737) ($610) ($818) ($4,186) ($5,004)
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Savings, NOW accounts, and money markets $452 ($1,086) ($634) $704 ($3,038) ($2,334)
Time deposits < $100,000 663 (1,290) (627) (314) (2315 (2.629)
Time deposits > $100,000 457 (548) (91) (431) (1,000) (1,431)
Total deposits $1,572 ($2,924) ($1,352) ($41) ($6,353) ($6,394)
Other borrowed funds 93 (68) 25 (330) (496) (826)
Total Interest-bearing liabilities $1,665 ($2,992) ($1,327) ($371) (86,849) ($7,220)
Net interest income/earning assets $3,462 ($2,745) $717 ($447) $2,663 $2,216

1 The change in interest due to both volume and yield/rate has been allocated to change due to volume and change due to yield/rate in

proportion to the absolute value of the change in each.

RET INTEREST INCOME

The Company’s largest component contributing to net income is
net interest income, which is the difference between interest
earned on earning assets (which are primarily loans and invest-
ments) and interest paid on interest bearing liabilities (which are
primarily deposits and other borrowings). The volume of and
yields earned on earning assets and the volume of and the rates
paid on interest bearing liabilities determine net interest
income. Interest earned and interest paid is also affected by

general economic conditions, particularly changes in market

| 18

interest rates, and by government policies and the action of reg-
ulatory authorities. Net interest income divided by average earn-
ing assets is referred to as net interest margin. For the years
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s net inter-
est margin was 4.02%, 4.51% and 4.19%, respectively. The
decline in the net interest margin in 2003 is attributable to
growth in assets and repricing of loans and investments at lower
yields than those attainable prior to 2003. The Banks’ net inter-
est margins, excluding United Bank, declined by approximately

30 basis points while the net interest margin for United Bank in
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2003 was 1.53% on average earning assets of $54,847,000. The
improved net interest margin in 2002 compared to 2001 is attrib-
utable to the Company being able to lower rates paid on deposits
and other borrowings more quickly than rates declined on loans

and investments.

Unless interest rates increase significantly in 2004, management
expects average yields on assets will likely fall again in 2004 as
assets continue to reprice. Also, the high level of competition in
the local markets will continue to put downward pressure on the
net interest margin of the Company into the foreseeable future.
Currently, the Company’s largest market, Ames, lowa, has seven
banks, three thrifts, four credit unions and several other
financial investment companies. Multiple banks are also located
in the Company’s other communities creating similarly

competitive environments.

Net interest income during 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled
$24,975,000, $24,608,000 and $22,591,000, respectively,
representing a 1.50% increase in 2003 from 2002 and an 8.93%
increase in 2002 compared to 2001. Income earned on a higher
volume of earning assets exceeded the interest expense on inter-
est bearing liabilities utilized to fund those assets allowing the
Company to increase its net interest income in 2003 compared
to 2002. The higher net interest income in 2002 resulted from
the Company being able to lower rates paid on deposits and other
borrowings more quickly than rates declined on loans and invest-
ments. Interest expense in 2003 versus 2002 was 11.35% lower
compared to a much larger reduction in 2002 compared to 2001

of 38.23%, reflecting the decline in market interest rates.

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses reflects management's judgment of
the expense to be recognized in order to maintain an adequate
allowance for loan losses. The Company provided $645,000 for
loan losses during 2003 compared to $688,000 in 2002 and
$898,000 in 2001. Provision expense was higher in 2001 versus

2002 and 2003 as the result of deterioration in the commercial

77 Ames
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lease portfolio in 2001. The growth of the loan portfolio and
necessary loan reserves at United Bank increased the provision
for loan losses by $314,000 in 2003 compared to $166,000
in 2002 which represents 48.65% of the Company’s provision
expense in 2003. See the Asset Quality and Credit Risk
Management discussion for additional detail with regard to loan

loss provision expense.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses to be
adequate to absorb probable losses in the current portfolio. This
statement is based upon management's continuing evaluation of
inherent risks in the current loan portfolio, current levels of
classified assets and general economic factors. The Company
will continue to monitor the allowance and make future adjust-

ments to the allowance as conditions dictate.

NONINTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Total noninterest income is comprised primarily of fee based
revenues from trust and agency services, bank related service
charges on deposit activities, net securities gains generated
primarily by the Company’s equity holdings, merchant and ATM
fees related to electronic processing of merchant and cash trans-

actions and secondary market income.

Noninterest income during 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled
$6,435,000, $5,135,000 and $5,080,000,
representing a 25.33% increase in 2003 from 2002 and a 1.08%
increase in 2002 compared 2001. Both secondary market

respectively,

income and net securities gains increased over 56% in 2003 from
2002. Low interest rates fueled a record year in secondary mar-
ket income through mortgage refinancings and the Company
realized a higher level of securities gains through liquidating
equity holdings that no longer fit the Company’s long term
investment strategy. Both secondary market income and net
security gains are expected to be lower in 2004. The increased
noninterest income in 2002 was the result of improved profitabili-
ty of trust, secondary market and automated teller machine

business offset by lower security gains.
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Noninterest expense for the Company consists of all other oper-
ating expenses other than interest expense on deposits and other
borrowed funds. Historically, the Company has not had any
material expenses relating to discontinued operations, extraordinary
losses or adjustments from a change in accounting principles.
Salaries and employee benefits are the largest component of the
Company’s operating expenses and comprise 61.03% of nonin-

terest expenses in 2003.

Noninterest expense during 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled
$14,820,000, $13,276,000 and $11,587,000, respectively,
representing an 11.63% increase in 2003 versus 2002 and a
14.57% increase in 2002 compared to 2001. An increase in
salaries and employee benefits was the largest contributor to the
increase in operating expenses in both 2003 and 2002. United
Bank had operating expenses in 2003 and 2002 of $1,418,000
and $698,000, respectively, increasing all overhead expense cate-
gories in comparison to those of 2001. Another factor leading to
the increase in operating expenses in 2003 was the additional
employees and higher salaries at First National. The percentage

of noninterest expense to

2.04% in 2003, compared to 2.09% and 1.88% during 2002 and
2001, respectively.

average assets was

ProviSION FOR INcoms TAXES

The provision for income taxes for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was
$4,321,000, $4,438,000 and $4,639,000, respectively.
This amount represents an effective tax rate of 27.10% during
2003, compared to 28.13% and 30.54% for 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The Company’s marginal federal tax rate is current-
ly 35%. The difference between the Company's effective and
marginal tax rate is primarily related to investments made in tax

exempt securities.
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BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

The Company’s assets are comprised primarily of loans and
investment bonds. Average earning asset maturity or repricing
dates are less than five years for the combined portfolios as the
assets are funded for the most part by short term deposits with
either immediate availability or less than one year average matu-
rities. This exposes the Company to risk with regard to changes
in interest rates that are more fully explained the section of this
report entitled “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about

Interest Rate Risk.”

Total assets increased to $752,786,000 in 2003 compared to
$677,229,000 in 2002, an 11.16% increase. The growth of
United Bank to $68,397,000 in total assets from the
$30,355,000 posted at the end of 2002 was the most significant
asset growth factor. Boone Bank and Randall-Story Bank also
posted double digit growth in assets.

Loan PORTFOLIO

Net loans (defined as gross loans less deferred loan fees and the
allowance for loan losses) for the year ended December 31,
2003, increased to $355,533,000 from $329,593,000 as of
December 31, 2002, an increase of 7.89%. The increase in loan
volume can be primarily attributed to growth in the commercial,
commercial real estate and residential loan portfolios at United
Bank. Loans are the primary contributor to the Company’s rev-
enues and cashflows. The average tax-equivalent yield on loans
was 76 and 86 basis points higher in 2003 and 2002, respective-
ly, than the investment portfolio yields for the same periods in
the previous year excluding short term federal funds sold and

interest bearing deposit with banks.
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Typres oF Loans

The following table sets forth the composition of the
Company’s loan portfolio for the past five years ending at
December 31:

(dollars in

thousands) 2003 2002
Real Estate ‘ 7 !

Construction’ $13,126 $13,518 | $12,677 $12,221 | $9062

2001 2000 1999

1-4 family | , |

residential 84,645 81,239% 84,379 97,663 89,171

Commercial 150,723 136,351 ' 117,211 112,415 98,840 .

Agricultural 24297 21,693 21,029 21,095 19,999
Commercial 38,555 40,097 45,631 53,955 48,920 ‘
Agricultural 27,815 26,022 27,367 28,199 25575
Consumer

and other 23,242 19,921 20920 24,576 23,897
Total loans $362,403 $338,841 $329,214 $350,124 $315,464
Deferred loan

fees, net 819 777 725 736 826
Total loans net of

deferred fees $361,584 $338,064 $328,489 $349,388 $314,638

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of real estate loans, com-
mercial loans, agricultural loans and consumer loans, As of
December 31, 2003, gross loans totaled approximately $362 mil-
lion, which equals approximately 58% of total deposits and 48%
of total assets. For the Company’s peer group, 347 bank holding
companies with total assets of $500 to $1,000 million, loan to
deposit ratio as of September 30, 2003 was a much higher 83%.
The primary factor relating to the lower loan to deposit ratio for
the Company compared to peer group averages is a more conser-
vative underwriting philosophy. As of December 31, 2003, the
majority of the loans were originated directly by the Banks to
borrowers within the Banks’ principal market areas. There are no

foreign loans outstanding during the years presented.
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Real estate loans include various types of loans for which
the Banks hold real property as collateral and consist of loans
primarily on commercial properties and single family residences.
Real estate loans typically have fixed rates for up to five years,
with the Company’s loan policy having a maximum fixed rate
maturity of up to 15 years. The majority of construction loan
volume is to contractors to construct commercial buildings and
generally have maturities of up to 12 months. The Banks
originate residential real estate loans for sale to the secondary

market for a fee.

Commercial loans consist primarily of loans to businesses for
various purposes including revolving lines to finance current
operations, floor-plans, inventory and accounts receivable and
capital expenditure loans to finance equipment and other fixed
assets. These loans generally have short maturities, have either
adjustable or fixed rates and are unsecured or secured by inven-

tory, accounts receivable, equipment and/or real estate.

Agricultural loans play an important part in the Banks’ loan
portfolios. Iowa is a major agricultural state and is a national
leader in both grain and livestock production. The Banks play a
significant role in their communities in financing operating, live-

stock and real estate activities for area producers.

Consumer loans include loans extended to individuals for
household, family and other personal expenditures not secured
by real estate. The majority of the Banks’ consumer lending
is for vehicles, consolidation of personal debts, household

appliances and improvements.

The interest rates charged on loans vary with the degree of risk
and the amount and maturity of the loan. Competitive pres-

sures, market interest rates, the availability of funds and govern-

. ment regulation further influence the rate charged on a loan.

The Banks follow a loan policy, which has been approved by both
the board of directors of the Company and the Banks, and is
overseen by both Company and Bank management. These poli-

cies establish lending limits, review and grading criteria and

Ames National Corporation 2003 Annual Report | 21 |




Ames
National
Corporation

other guidelines such as loan administration and allowance for
loan losses. Loans are approved by the Banks’ board of directors
and/or designated officers in accordance with respective guide-
lines and underwriting policies of the Company. Loans to one
borrower are limited by applicable state and federal banking
laws. Credit limits generally vary according to the type of loan

and the individual loan officer’s experience.

MaruriTies AND. SENSITIVITIES OF LOANS TO CHANGES

IN INTEREST RATES AS OF DEcEmser 31, 2003

The contractual maturities of the Company's loan portfolio are
as shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because individual borrowers may have the right to
prepay loans with or without prepayment penalties. The matu-
rity of fixed rate loans and the volume of variable rate loans are
relevant as an indicator of the Company’s ability to reprice loans

in relation to changes in market interest rates.

After lyr
Within but within After
(dollars in thousands) 1 Year S years 5 years Total
Real Estate ‘ - -
Construction $10,868 $2,110 @ $148  $13,126
1-4 family residential 3,807 34,544 46294 84,645
Commercial 14,504 104,023 32,196 150,723
Agricultural 1,317 5,296 17,684 24,297
Commercial 22,835 13,804 1,916 38,555
Agricultural 17,992 5,446 4,377 27,815
Consumer and other 3,804 12,908 6,530 23,242
Total loans $75,127 $178,131 $109,145 $362,403
After one
year but
within After
five years five years
Loaﬁ maturities after one year with:
Fixed rates $150,610 $21,456
Variable rates 27,521 87,689
$178,131 $109,145
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Mortgage origination funding awaiting delivery to the secondary
market totaled $859,000 and $2,713,000 as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Residential mortgage loans are orig-
inated by the Banks and sold to several secondary mortgage market
outlets based upon customer product preferences and pricing
considerations. The mortgages are sold in the secondary market
to eliminate interest rate risk and to generate income. It is not
anticipated at the present time that loans held for sale will

become a significant portion of total assets.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Total investments as of December 31, 2003, were $323,116,000,
an increase of $78,541,000 or 32% from the prior year end. As
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the investment portfolio

comprised 43% and 36%, respectively, of total assets.

The following table presents the market values, which represent the
carrying values due to the available-for-sale classification, of the
Company’s investment portfolio as of December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. This portfolio provides the Company with a
significant amount of liquidity since all of the investments are con-
sidered available for sale as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
U.S. treasury securities $2,229  $4,208 $12,548
U.S. government agencies 1 18,637 85,780 60,858
State and political subdivisions 105,963 70,516 63,109
Corporate bonds 63,586 56,357 51,106
Equity securities 32,701 27,714 26,157
Total $323,116 $244,575 $213,778

Investments in states and political subdivisions represent
purchases of municipal bonds located primarily in the state of

Towa and contiguous states.




Investment in other securities includes corporate debt obligations
of companies located and doing business throughout the United
States. The debt obligations were all within the credit ratings
acceptable under the Banks' investment policies. As of
December 31, 2003, the Company did not have securities from
a single issuer, except for the United States Government or its
agencies, which exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders’
equity. The equity securities portfolio consists primarily of finan-
cial and utility stocks as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

ENVESTMENT PATURITIES AS OF DecemBer 31, 20603

The investments in the following table are reported by contrac-
tual maturity. Expected maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or pre-
pay obligations with or without prepayment penalties. The
maturities of the investments are relevant as an indicator of the
Company's ability to reprice these earning assets in relation to

changes in market interest rates.

After 1 After 5
year but years but
Within within  within After
(doflars in thousands) 1 Year Syears 10 years 10 years Total
US. treasury - $1,6900 - | $539 -1 82,229,
U.S. government }
agencies | 15,378 » $55,930 36,753.$10,576 + 118,637
States and political‘ i
subdivisions 7,806 22,847 f 41,637- 33,673 : 105,963‘
Corporate bonds 3,056 37,304 22,722 504 63,586

Total
Weighted average

$27,930 $116,081 $101,651 $44,753 $290,415

yield
U.S. treasury 4.22% - 5.19% - 4.44%
U.S. government

agencies 4.98% 3.64% 430% 4.89% 4.11%
States and political

subdivisions* 5.61% 6.27% 6.91% 6.36%  6.50%
Corporate bonds 6.21% 5.02% 5.82% 6.40% 5.37%
Total 5.25% 4.60% 5.71% 6.01% 5.26%

*Yields on tax-exempt obligations of states and political subdivisions

have been computed on a tax-equivalent basis.
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DepOSITS

Total deposits equaled $619,549,000 and $550,622,000 as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase of
$68,927,000 can be attributed to deposit growth at four of the
five Banks with United Bank and First National posting the
largest increases of $36,997,000 and $20,717,000, respectively.
Average deposits for the year ended December 31, 2003, were
$76,917,000 higher than the same period in 2002. Deposit
categories seeing the largest balance increases were NOW

accounts and other time certificates under $100,000.

The Company’s primary source of funds is customer deposits.
The Company attempts to attract noninterest-bearing deposits,
which are a low cost funding source. In addition, the Banks offer
a variety of interest-bearing accounts designed to attract both
short-term and longer-term deposits from customers. Interest-
bearing accounts earn interest at rates established by Bank
management based on competitive market factors and the
Company’s need for funds. While nearly 64% of the Banks’
certificates of deposit mature in the next year, it is anticipated
that a majority of these certificates will be renewed. Rate sensitive
certificates of deposits in excess of $100,000 are subject to
somewhat higher volatility with regard to renewal volume as the
Banks adjust rates based upon funding needs. In the event a
substantial volume of certificates are not renewed, the
Company has sufficient liquid assets and borrowing lines to fund
significant runoff. A sustained reduction in deposit volume
would have a significant negative impact on the Company'’s
operation and liquidity. The Company traditionally has not
relied upon brokered deposits and does not anticipate utilizing

such funds at the present time.
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BveraAGE DeposiTs BY TYPE

The following table sets forth the average balances for each major category of deposit and the weighted average interest rate paid
for deposits during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Amount Rate = Amount Rate | Amount Rate -

Noninterest bearing demand deposits 1 $59,614 $33,318 $51,113

Interest bearing demand deposits 130,138 0.70% 103,529 2.01% 115,494  1.00%

Money market deposits 143,478  1.20% 101,267 3.23% 120,446  1.71%

Savings deposits 25,269  0.50% 24,486 0.71% 24112 1.56%

Time certificates < $100,000 170,534  3.21% 152,703 4.00% 158,625 5.51%

Time certificates > $100,000 65,759  2.75% 51,428 3.69% 58,253 5.71%
$594,792 $517,875 $496,899

DEPOSIT MATURITY

The following table shows the amounts and remaining maturities of time certificates of deposit that had balances of $100,000 and

over as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

3 months or less $23,801  $15,162  $16,771
Over 3 through 12 months 29,896 25,939 24,590
Over 12 through 36 months 11,374 9,281 4,765
Over 36 months 4,416 4,182 1,590
Total $69,487 $54,564 $47,716
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BorrROWED FunDS

Borrowed funds that may be utilized by the Company are com-
prised of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances, federal
funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repur-
chase (repurchase agreements). Borrowed funds are an alterna-
tive funding source to deposits and can be used to fund the
FHLB

advances are loans from the FHLB that can mature daily or have

Company’s assets and unforeseen liquidity needs.

longer maturities for fixed or floating rates of interest. Federal
funds purchased are borrowings from other banks that mature
daily. Repurchase agreements are similar to deposits as they are
funds lent by various Bank customers; however, the bank
pledges investment securities to secure such borrowings. The
Company’s repurchase agreements normally may reprice daily.
The Company does not have any FHLB advances or federal
funds purchased outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

The following table summarizes the outstanding amount of and

the average rate on borrowed funds as of December 31, 2003,

2002 and 2001.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
{ Average: Average i Averagel
'Balance Rate ' Balance Rate | Balance Rate :
FHLB advances $ - % $ - -%  $1,000 5.21%
Federal funds purchased
&repurchase agreements 18,199 139% 18,326 1.50% 10,596 2.54%
Total $18,199 1.39% $18,326 1.50% $11,596 2.77%

AVERAGE ANNUAL BorrOWED FuniDs

The following table sets forth the average amount of, the average
rate paid and maximum outstanding balance on borrowed funds
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.
(dollars in thousands)

‘iAverage Average |Average Average ?A\rerage Average |

2003 2002 2001

'Balance Rate 'Balance Rate iBalance  Rate
FHLB advances $ - % $47 4.26% $8,791 6.29%
Federal funds purchased
& repurchase agreements 19,588  1.48% 13,840 191% 14217 3.78%

Total $19,588  1.48% $13,887 191% $23,008 4.74%

Ames National Corporation 2003 Annual Report | 25

Ames
National
Corporation

2003 2002 2001
Maximum Amount : ! !
Outstanding during ‘ :
the year:
FHLB advances - $1,000 $16,000
Federal funds purchased
& repurchase agreements $22,728 18,326 25,400

OrF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business. These finan-
cial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recog-
nized in the balance sheet. For additional information, see foot-
note 9 of the “Notes to the Consolidated Statements.”

Asser QuaLTy ReviEw AND
CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's credit risk is centered in the loan portfolio,
which on December 31, 2003, totaled $355,533,000 as com-
pared to $329,593,000 as of December 31, 2002, an increase of
7.87%. Net loans comprise 47% of total assets as of the end of
2003. The object in managing loan portfolio risk is to reduce the
risk of loss resulting from a customer’s failure to perform
according to the terms of a transaction and to quantify and man-
age credit risk on a portfolio basis. As the following chart indi-
cates, the Company’s credit risk management efforts reflect an
improving trend with regard to non-performing assets that total
$2,346,000 as of December 31, 2003. The Company’s level of
problem assets as a percentage of assets of 0.31% compares
favorably to the average for FDIC insured institutions as of
September 30, 2003 of 0.77%.

MNON-PERFORMING ASSETS

The following table sets forth information concerning the

Company’s non-performing assets for the past five years ending
December 31, 2003.
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(dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
INON-PERFORMING "
ASSETS: k : ‘
Non-accrual loans  $1,756  $2,015 $2,692  $2,663 = $405
Loans 90 days or
more past due 431 394 797 242 723
Restructured loans - - - - -
2,187 2,409 3,489 2,905 1,128
Other real
estate owned 159 295 159 75 41
Total non-
performing assets $2,346  $2,704 $3,648 $2,980 $1,169

The accrual of interest on non-accrual and other impaired loans
is discontinued at 90 days or when, in the opinion of manage-
ment, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they
become due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid
accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently rec-
ognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Interest
income on restructured loans is recognized pursuant to the
terms of the new loan agreement. Interest income on other
impaired loans is monitored and based upon the terms of the
underlying loan agreement. However, the recorded net invest-
ment in impaired loans, including accrued interest, is limited to
the present value of the expected cash flows of the impaired

loan or the observable fair market value of the loan’s collateral.

Qutstanding loans of $200,000 were placed on non-accrual
status in 2003 with total non-accrual loans equaling $1,756,000
as of December 31, 2003. Outstanding loans of $383,000 were
placed on non-accrual status in 2002 with total non-accrual loans
equaling $2,015,000 as of December 31, 2002. Outstanding
loans of $886,000 were placed on non-accrual status in 2001
with total non-accrual loans equaling $2,692,000 as of
December 31, 2001. A real estate loan at First National with a
December 31, 2003 and 2002, balance of $1,305,000 is the
largest non-performing asset. For the years ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001, interest income, which would have been

2%
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recorded under the original terms of such loans was
approximately $179,000, $160,000 and $243,000, respectively,
with $177,000, $17,000 and $114,000, respectively, recorded.
Loans greater than_90 days past due and still accruing interest
were $431,000 and $394,000 at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

SUMMARY OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses represents an expense charged
against earnings to maintain an adequate allowance for loan loss-
es. The allowance for loan losses is management'’s best estimate
of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance
sheet date. Factors considered in establishing an appropriate
allowance include: an assessment of the financial condition of
the borrower; a realistic determination of value and adequacy of
underlying collateral; the condition of the local economy and the
condition of the specific industry of the borrower; an analysis
of the levels and trends of loan categories; and a review of

delinquent and classified loans.

The adequacy of allowance for loan losses is evaluated quarterly by
management and the respective Bank boards. This evaluation
focuses on specific loan reviews, changes in the type and volume of
the loan portfolio given the current and forecasted economic con-
ditions and historical loss experience. Any one of the
following conditions may result in the review of a specific loan:
concern about whether the customer’s cash flow or net worth are
sufficient to repay the loan; delinquent status; criticism of the loan
in a regulatory examination; the accrual of interest has been sus-
pended; or other reasons including when the loan has other special

or unusual characteristics which warrant special monitoring.

While management uses available information to recognize loss-
es on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans
may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions.
In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on
loans. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize
additional losses based on their judgment about information

available to them at the time of their examination.




ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The Company’s policy is to charge-off loans when, in management’s opinion, the loan is deemed uncollectible, although concerted
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efforts are made to maximize future recoveries. The following table sets forth information regarding changes in the Company’s

allowance for loan losses for the most recent five years.

(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period
CHARGE-OFFS
Real Estate
Construction
1-4 Family Residential
Commercial
Agricultural
Commercial
Agricultural
Consumer and other

RECOVERIES

Real Estate
Construction
1-4 Family Residential
Commercial
Agricultural

Commercial

Agricultural

Consumer and other

Net charge-offs (recoveries)
Additions charged to
operations

Balance at end of period

Average Loans Outstanding

Ratio of net charge-offs during the

period to average loans
outstanding

Ratio of allowance for loan losses
to total loans net of deferred fees

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
$5,758 $5,446 1 $5,373 $4,986 $4,846
|
24 - j - - -
5 - : 1 - .

- 40 - - 18

392 235 768 55 -
43 155 83 96 4l
$464 $430 $852 $151 $59

- 20 _ - -
- - - - 16

100 14 8 66 -
12 20 19 12 17
$112 $54 $27 $78 $33
352 376 825 73 26
645 688 898 460 166
$6,051 $5,758 $5,446 $5,373 $4,986
$349,812 $317,521 $341,440 $339,115 $299,064
0.10% 0.12% 0.24% 0.02% 0.01%
1.67% 1.70% 1.65% 1.54% 1.58%

Ames National Corporation 2003 Annual Report

27 |




‘Ames
National
Corporation

The allowance for loan losses increased to $6,051,000 at the end
of 2003 in comparison to the allowance of $5,758,000 at year
end 2002. The increase can be primarily attributed to the
growth of general reserves at United Bank. As of December 31,
2003 and 2002, United Bank had allowance for loan losses of
$480,000 and $166,000, respectively. The increase in the
reserve levels in 2002 relate primarily to First National as the
result of higher specific reserves for two problem credits identified
by management prior to 2002 and a large specific reserve for a
newly downgraded problem loan in 2002. Problem commercial
leases identified at First National in 2001 led to higher provision
expense, net charge-offs and specific reserves as credit weak-
nesses were identified in 2001. General reserve allocations

remained consistent in 2003 with prior years.

General reserves for loan categories normally range from 1.00 to
1.30% of the outstanding loan balances. As loan volume increases,
the general reserve levels increase with that growth. As the
previous table indicates, loan provisions have stabilized since
2001 as net charge-offs, loan loss provision expense and the
allowance for loan losses to total loans are similar for the twelve
months ended 2003 and 2002. The general reserve loss facters
have remained consistent over the five-year period presented.
The allowance relating to commercial real estate and 1-4 family
residential loans are the largest reserve components.
Commercial real estate loans have higher general reserve levels
than other real estate loans as management perceives more risk
in this type of lending. Elements contributing to the higher risk
level include susceptibility of businesses to changing environ-
mental factors such as the economic business cycle, the larger
individual loan amounts, a limited number of buyers and the
specialized uses for some properties. As of December 31, 2003,
commercial real estate loans have general reserves of 1.30% and
1-4 family residential loans, which management generally
considers lower risk, have general reserves of 1.00%. The
estimation methods and assumptions used in determining the

allowance for the five years presented have remained consistent.
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Loans that the Banks have identified as having higher risk levels
are reviewed individually in an effort to establish adequate loss
reserves. These reserves are considered specific reserves and are
directly impacted by the credit quality of the underlying loans.
Normally, as the actual or expected level of non-performing
loans increase, the specific reserves also increase. For December 31,
2003 and 2002, specific reserves increased $146,000 or 8.65%
and $386,000 or 29.65%, respectively, over prior periods. In
2003, specific allocations to problem agricultural real estate
loans was the largest contributor to the increase in the specific
reserve level when compared to year end 2002. Specific alloca-
tions for commercial real estate loans triggered the increase in
2002 while commercial leases contributed to the increase in
total reserve levels in 2001. The specific reserves are dependent
upon assumptions regarding the liquidation value of collateral
and the cost of recovering collateral including legal fees.
Changing the amount of specific reserves on individual loans has
had the largest impact on the reallocation of the reserve among

different parts of the portfolio.

Other factors that are considered when determining the
adequacy of the reserve include loan concentrations, loan
growth, the economic outlock and historical losses.The
Company’s concentration risks include geographic concentration
in central Towa; the local economy’s dependence upon several
large governmental entity employers, including Iowa State
University and the lowa Department of Transportation; and the
health of Towa's agricultural sector that in turn is dependent on
weather conditions and government programs. No significant
reserves have been established for local and national economic
conditions over the last five-year period as the economic outlook
has generally been favorable. However, no assurances can be
made that losses will remain at the favorable levels experienced

over the past five years.
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ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR Loan LOSSES

The following table sets forth information concerning the Company’s allocation of the allowance for loan losses.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
: Amount % * Amount % *  Amount %" ’ Amount % * | Amount % * |
Balance at end of period ] ‘ ! 3 [
applicable to: !
Real Estate !
Construction $196 3.62% $210  3.99% $178 3.99% - $163 3.49%  $91 2.87%
1-4 family residential 948 23.36% 892 23.98% 980 23.98% 1,088 27.89% 899 28.27%
Commercial 2,663 41.59% 2,453 40.24% 1,704 40.24% 1,619 32.11% 1,536 31.33%
Agricultural 458  6.70% 302 6.40% 279  6.40% 315 6.03% 237  6.34%
Commercial 775 10.64% 910 11.83% 938 11.83% 754 15.41% 573 15.51%
Agricultural 488  7.68% 504  7.68% 457 7.68% 421 8.05% 541  8.11%
Consumer and other 255  6.41% 235 5.88% 258 5.88% 538 7.02% 560 7.58%
Unallocated 268 252 652 475 549
$6,051 100% $5,758 100%  $5,446 100% $5,373 100% $4,986 100%

* Percent of loans in each category to total loans.

Liquidity is derived primarily from core deposit growth and

LiuipiTy AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

retention; principal and interest payments on loans; principal
Liquidity management is the process by which the Company,

through its Banks’ Asset and Liability Committees (ALCO),

ensures that adequate liquid funds are available to meet its

and interest payments, sale, maturity and prepayment of invest-
ment securities; net cash provided from operations; and access
to other funding sources. Other funding sources include federal
funds purchased lines, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLBE)

advances and other capital market sources.

financial commitments on a timely basis, at a reasonable cost
and within acceptable risk tolerances. These commitments

include: funding credit cobligations to borrowers, funding mort-

gage originations pending delivery to the secondary market,
withdrawing funds by depositors, maintaining adequate collater-
al for pledging for public funds, trust deposits and borrowings,
paying dividends to shareholders, paying operating expenses,
and maintaining deposit

funding capital expenditures

reserve requirements.

As of December 31, 2003, the level of liquidity and capital
resources of the Company remain at a satisfactory level and
compare favorably to that of other FDIC insured institutions.
Management believes that the Company's liquidity sources will
be sufficient to support its existing operations for the foresee-

able future.
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The liquidity and capital resources discussion will cover the

following topics:

* Review the Company’s Current Liquidity Sources

* Review of Statements of Cash Flows

» Company Only Cash Flows

* Review of Commitments for Capital Expenditures, Cash
Flow Uncertainties and Known Trends in Liquidity and Cash
Flows Needs

* Capital Resources

Review ofF tHE CompPaNY’s CURRENT
LIQUIDITY SOURCES

Liquid assets of cash on hand, balances due from other banks,
federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits in financial
institutions for December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, totaled
$58,725,000, $85,189,000, and $72,059,000, respectively. The
lower balance of liquid assets as of December 31, 2003, relates
to a lower level of federal funds sold and correspondent bank
balances. Federal funds sold have been utilized to fund loan
growth and investment purchases and correspondent compen-
sating balances were abnormally high at the end of 2002 as First
National transitioned to a new correspondent bank to process
check clearings. The increase in liquidity in 2002 was the result
of diminished loan demand, increased deposit levels and
maintaining a higher level of federal funds sold as a result of

historically low investment yields.

Other sources of liquidity available to the Banks at December
31, 2003 include outstanding lines of credit with the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Des Moines, lowa of $30,732,000 and fed-
eral funds borrowing capacity at correspondent banks of
$37,500,000. The Company did not have any outstanding FHLB
advances as of December 31, 2003 and securities sold under

agreement to repurchase totaled $18,198,000.

Total investments as of December 31, 2003, were $323,116,000
compared to $244,575,000 as of year end 2002. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, the investment portfolio as a percentage of

average assets was 43% and 36%, respectively. The Company has
a significant amount of liquidity since all of the investments are
sale as of December 31,

classified as available for

2003 and 2002.

The investment portfolio serves an important role in the overall
context of balance sheet management in terms of balancing
capital utilization and liquidity. The decision to purchase or sell
securities is based upon the current assessment of economic and
financial conditions, including the interest rate environment,
liquidity and credit considerations. The portfolio’s scheduled

maturities represent a significant source of liquidity.

Review OF STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating cash flows for December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
totaled $14,828,000, $13,803,000, and $7,773,000, respectively.
The primary variance in operating cash flows in 2003 compared
to 2002 was the source of cash provided in 2003 from accrued
expenses and other liabilities that was a use of cash in 2002. The
2003 increase in accrued expenses was associated with property
tax, vacation and income tax expenses, while in 2002 lower mar-
ket interest rates caused a decline in the level of accrued inter-
est on deposits. The combined effect is a $1,082,000 increase in
2003 operating cash flows compared to the cash flows of 2002.
A change in loans held for sale was the primary reason for the

lower operating cash flow in 2001.

Net cash used in investing activities for December 31, 2003 and
2002, was $96,479,000 and $43,819,000, respectively, while
2001 reflected net cash provided by investing activity of
$16,254,000. The largest investing activities were the purchase
of U.S. government agency bonds, municipal bonds and the
funding of commercial real estate loans in both 2003 and 2002.
In contrast, 2001 investing cash flows reflect declining loan
demand and a lower level of bond purchases that resulted in an

increased level of federal funds sold.
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Net cash provided by financing activities for December 31,
2003 and 2002, totaled $61,944,000 and $39,245,000, respec-
tively, while in 2001, net cash used in finance activities totaled
$10,343,000. Growth in deposits was the primary source of
financing funds in 2003 and 2002. However, the repayment of
federal funds purchased and other borrowings was the primary
use of financing funds in 2001. As of December 31, 2003, the
Company did not have any external debt financing, off balance
sheet financing arrangements, or derivative instruments linked

to its stock.

Company Onty CasH Frows

The Company'’s liquidity on an unconsolidated basis is heavily
dependent upon dividends paid to the Company by the Banks.
The Company requires adequate liquidity to pay its expenses
and pay stockholder dividends. In 2003, dividends from the
Banks amounted to $7,868,000 compared to $5,978,000 in
2002. Various federal and state statutory provisions limit the
amount of dividends banking subsidiaries are permitted to pay
to their holding companies without regulatory approval. Federal
Reserve policy further limits the circumstances under which
bank holding companies may declare dividends. For example, a
bank holding company should not continue its existing rate of
cash dividends on its common stock unless its net income is
sufficient to fully fund each dividend and its prospective rate of
earnings retention appears consistent with its capital needs,
asset quality and overall financial condition. In addition, the
Federal Reserve and the FDIC have issued policy statements
which provide that insured banks and bank holding companies
should generally pay dividends only out of current operating
earnings. Federal and state banking regulators may also restrict

the payment of dividends by order.

First National, as a national bank, generally may pay dividends
from undivided profits without restriction, provided that its

surplus fund is at least equal to its common stock capital fund.
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Boone Bank, Randall-Story Bank and State Bank are also
restricted under lowa law to paying dividends only out of their
undivided profits. United Bank is not expected to generate
sufficient earning to pay any dividends in 2004. Additionally, the
payment of dividends by the Banks is affected by the requirement
to maintain adequate capital pursuant to applicable capital
adequacy guidelines and regulations, and the Banks generally are
prohibited from paying any dividends if, following payment

thereof, the Bank would be undercapitalized.

The Company has unconsolidated interest bearing deposits and
marketable investment securities totaling $35,243,000 that are

presently available to provide additional liquidity to the Banks.

Review oF COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL
ExXPENDITURES, CASH FLOW UNCERTAINTIES
AND Known TRENDS IN LIGUIDITY AND
CasH FLows NEEDS

No material capital expenditures or material changes in the
capital resource mix are anticipated at this time. Commitments
to extend credit totaled $71,100,000 as of December 31, 2003,
compared to a total of $59,410,000 at the end of 2002. The tim-
ing of these credit commitments varies with the underlying
borrowers; however, the Company has satisfactory liquidity to
fund these obligations as of December 31, 2003. The primary
cash flow uncertainty would be a sudden decline in deposits
causing the Banks to liquidate securities. Historically, the Banks
have maintained an adequate level of short term marketable
investments to fund the temporary declines in deposit balances.
There are no known trends in liquidity and cash flows needs as

of December 31, 2003 that are a concern to management.
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CapiraL RESOURCES

The Company’s total stockholders’ equity increased to
$107,325,000 at December 31, 2003, from $101,523,000 at
December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, stock-
holders’ equity as a percentage of total assets was 14.26% and
14.99%, respectively. Total equity increased due to retention of
earnings and from appreciation in the Company and Banks’
investment portfolios. The capital levels of the Company cur-
rently exceed applicable regulatory guidelines as of December
31, 2003.

INTEREST RATE RISk

Interest rate risk refers to the impact that a change in interest
rates may have on the Company’s earnings and capital.
Management’s objectives are to control interest rate risk and to
ensure predictable and consistent growth of earnings and capi-
tal. Interest rate risk management focuses on fluctuations in net
interest income identified through computer simulations to
evaluate volatility, varying interest rates, spread and volume
assumptions. The risk is quantified and compared against toler-

ance levels.

The Company uses a third-party computer software simulation
modeling program to measure its exposure to potential interest
rate changes. For various assumed hypothetical changes in
market interest rates, numerous other assumptions are made
such as prepayment speeds on loans, the slope of the Treasury
yield curve, the rates and volumes of the Company’s deposits
and the rates and volumes of the Company’s loans. This analysis
measures the estimated change in net interest income in the

event of hypothetical changes in interest rates.

Another measure of interest rate sensitivity is the gap ratio. This
ratio indicates the amount of interest-earning assets repricing
within a given period in comparison to the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities repricing within the same period of time. A
gap ratio of 1.0 indicates a matched position, in which case the
effect on net interest income due to interest rate movements
will be minimal. A gap ratio of less than 1.0 indicates that more
liabilities than assets reprice within the time period and a ratio

greater than 1.0 indicates that more assets reprice than liabilities.

The simulation model process provides a dynamic assessment of
interest rate sensitivity, whereas a static interest rate gap table is
compiled as of a point in time. The model simulations differ
from a traditional gap analysis, as a traditional gap analysis does
not reflect the multiple effects of interest rate movement on the
entire range of assets and liabilities and ignores the future

impact of new business strategies.

INFLATION

The primary impact of inflation on the Company’s operations is
to increase asset yields, deposit costs and operating overhead.
Unlike most industries, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of
a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest
rates generally have a more significant impact on a financial
institution’s performance than they would on non-financial
companies. Although interest rates do not necessarily move in
the same direction or to the same extent as the price of goods
and services, increases in inflation generally have resulted in
increased interest rates. The effects of inflation can magnify the
growth of assets and, if significant, require that equity capital

increase at a faster rate than would be otherwise necessary.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The discussion in the management discussion and analysis and
elsewhere in this report contains forward-looking statements
about the Company, its business and its prospects. Forward-
looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not
relate strictly to historical or current facts. They often include
use of the words “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”,
“plan”, “estimate” or words of similar meaning, or future or con-
ditional verbs such as “will”, “would”, “should”, “could” or
“may”. Forward-looking statements, by their nature, are subject
to risks and uncertainties. A number of factors, many of which
are beyond the Company’s control, could cause actual condi-
tions, events or results to differ significantly from those
described in the forward-looking statements. Such risks and
uncertainties with respect to the Company include, but are not
limited to, those related to the economic environment, particu-
larly in the areas in which the Company and the Banks operate,

competitive products and pricing, fiscal and monetary policies of
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the U.S. government, changes in governmental regulations
affecting financial institutions (including regulatory fees and cap-
ital requirements), changes in prevailing interest rates, credit risk
management and asset/liability management, the financial and
securities markets and the availability of and costs associated

with sources of liquidity.

These factors may not constitute all factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those discussed in any
forward-looking statement. The Company operates in a contin-
ually changing business environment and new facts emerge from
time to time. It cannot predict such factors nor can it assess the
impact, if any, of such factors on its financial position or its
results of operations. Accordingly, forward-looking statements
should not be relied upon as a predictor of actual results. The
Company disclaims any responsibility to update any forward-

looking statements provided in this document.

QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company’s market risk is comprised primarily of interest
rate risk arising from its core banking activities of making loans
and taking deposits. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in
market interest rates may adversely affect the Company’s net
interest income. Management continually develops and applies
strategies to mitigate this risk. Management does not believe
that the Company's primary market risk exposure and how

that exposure was managed in 2003 changed when compared

to 2002.

Based on a simulation modeling analysis performed as of
December 31, 2003, the following table presents the estimated
change in net interest income in the event of hypothetical

changes in interest rates for the various rate shock levels:

Ames National Corporation 2003 Annual Report

NET INTEREST INCOME AT RisK

EsTimarteD CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME FOR YEAR
EnpinG DecEmBER 37, 2004

(dollars in thousands) $ Change % Change
+200 Basis Points $586 2.2%
+100 Basis Points 311 1.2%
-100 Basis Points 957 -3.6%
-200 Basis Points 3,186 -11.8%

As shown above, at December 31, 2003, the estimated effect of
an immediate 200 basis point increase in interest rates would
increase the Company’s net interest income by 2.2% or approx-
imately $586,000 in 2004. The estimated effect of an immedi-
ate 200 basis point decrease in rates would decrease the
Company’s net interest income by 11.8% or approximately
$3,186,000 in 2004. The

Management Policy establishes parameters for a 200 basis point

Company’s Asset Liability
change in interest rates. Under this policy, the Company and the
Banks’ objective is to properly structure the balance sheet to
prevent a 200 basis point change in interest rates from causing a
decline in net interest income by more than 15% in one year
compared to the base year that hypothetically assumes no

change in interest rates.

Computations of the prospective effects of hypothetical interest
rate changes are based on numerous assumptions. Actual values
may differ from those projections set forth above. Further, the
computations do not contemplate any actions the Company
may undertake in response to changes in interest rates. Current
interest rates on certain liabilities are at a level that does not
allow for significant repricing should market interest rates

decline considerably.
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CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OR REPRICING

The following table sets forth the estimated maturity or re-pricing and the resulting interest sensitivity gap, of the Company's inter-
est-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the cumulative interest sensitivity gap at December 31, 2003. The expected
maturities are presented on a contractual basis. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because of prepayment

assumptions, early withdrawal of deposits and competition.

Less than Three One to Over
three months to five five Cumulative
months ~ one year years years Total
(dollars in thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS | : ‘ ‘
Interest-bearing deposits with banks $5,364 $500 $500 $ - $6,364
Federal funds sold ‘ : 20,380 - : - - 20,380
Investments * ‘ 7,256 ‘ 20,674 116,081 179,105 323,116
Loans 58,115 ‘ 36,253 196,999 71,036 362,403
Total interest-earning assets ) $91,115 $57,427 $313,580 $250,141 $712,263
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest bearing demand deposits $138,308 s - $ - $ - $138,308
Money market and savings deposits 166,387 - - - 166,387
Time certificates < $100,000 22,682 78,639 72,529 144 173,994
Time certificates > $100,000 23,801 29,856 15,790 - 69,487
Other borrowed funds 18,198 - - - 18,198
Total interest-bearing liabilities $369,376 $108,535 $88,319 $144 $566,374
Interest sensitivity gap ($278,261) ($51,108) $225,261 $249,997 $145,889
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap ($278,261) ($329,369) ($104,108) $145,889 $145,889
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percent of total assets -36.96% -43.75% -13.83% 19.38%

*Investments with maturities over 5 years include the market value of equity securities of $32,701.
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As of December 31, 2003, the Company’s cumnulative gap ratios
for assets and liabilities repricing within three months and with-
in one year were .37 and .44, respectively, meaning more liabil-
ities than assets are scheduled to reprice within these periods.
This situation suggests that a decrease in market interest rates
may benefit net interest income and that an increase in interest
rates may negatively impact the Company. The liability sensitive
gap position is largely the result of classifying the interest bear-
ing NOW accounts, money market accounts and savings
accounts as immediately repriceable. Certain shortcomings are
inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing
table. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities and periods to repricing, they may react
differently to changes in market interest rates. Also, interest
rates on assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes
in market interest rates, while interest rates on other assets and
liabilities may follow changes in market interest rates.
Additionally, certain assets have features that restrict changes in
the interest rates of such assets, both on a short-term basis and

over the lives of such assets.
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors :
Ames National Corporation and Subsidiaries
Ames, lowa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ames National Corporation
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements

of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

MeHtadsey f llne, tor

Des Moines, lowa
January 23, 2004

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is an independent member firm of
RSM International, an affiliation of independent accounting
and consulting firms.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003 and 2002

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks (Note 2)

Federal funds sold

Interest bearing deposits in financial institutions
Securities available-for-sale (Note 3)

Loans receivable, net (Note 4)

Loans held for sale

Bank premises and equipment, net (Note 3)
Accrued income receivable

Other assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits (Note 6)
Demand, noninterest bearing
NOW accounts
Savings and money market
Time, $100,000 and over
Other time
Total deposits

Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase

Dividend payable

Deferred income taxes (Note 8)

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 9)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 10)

Common stock, $5 par value, authorized 6,000,000 shares;

issued 2003 and 2002 3,153,230 shares;
outstanding 2003 3,133,053 shares,
2002 3,128,982 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost; 2003 20,177 shares,
2002 24,248 shares
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2003 2002
$31,982,144 ‘ $51,688,784
20,380,000 ‘ 32,500,000
6,363,538 ' 1,000,000
323,115,914 244,575,026
355,533,119 329,593,051
859,139 2,713,446
8,377,807 8,726,397
5,842,247 5,849,017
332,556 582,849

$752,786,464

$71,372,534
138,308,140
166,387,319
69,486,570
173,993,964
$619,548,527

$18,198,403
1,441,204
3,238,665
3,034,670
$645,461,469

$15,766,150
25,351,979
58,400,660

(1,109,735)

8,915,941
$107,324,995

$752,786,464

————————

$677,228,570

—_———

$62,557,937
121,325,104
153,296,259
54,564,283
158,878,796
$550,622,379

$18,325,574
1,376,752
2,879,057
2,501,952
$575,705,714

$15,766,150
25,354,014
53,917,544

(1,333,640)

7,818,788
$101,522,856

$677,228,570

Ames
National
Corporation
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2003 2002 2001

Interest and dividend income: , z
Loans, including fees 1 $22,197,335 5 $23,207,184 ) $27,891,379

Securities ;
Taxable 7,510,671 7,931,041 8,714,486
Tax-exempt 3,604,641 2,938,423 2,876,432
Federal funds sold | 628,203 ; 810,675 ! 829,083
Dividends | 1,372,890 1,383,350 1,162,176
| $35,313,740 $36,270,673 $41,473,556

Interest expense:
Deposits $10,045,178 | $11,397,125 $17,791,314
Other borrowed funds 5 293,604 ‘ 265,845 ; 1,091,319
: $10,338,782 ‘ $11,662,970 | $18,882,633
Net interest income 3 $24,974,958 ‘ $24,607,703 $22,590,923
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) : 645,447 688,431 897,540
Net interest income after provision for loan losses $24,329,511 $23,919,272 $21,693,383

Noninterest income:
Trust department income $1,225,099 $1,032,500 $948,499
Service fees 1,513,964 1,492,344 1,585,036
Securities gains, net (Note 3) 1,395,320 889,923 1,197,050
Gain on sale of loans held for sale 1,155,311 739,907 589,215
Merchant and ATM fees 513,832 405,667 282,072
Other ‘ 631,949 574,473 478,172
Total noninterest income $6,435,475 $5,134,814 $5,080,044
Noninterest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits (Note 7) $9,044,896 $8,074,181 $6,834,588
Data processing 2,188,488 1,934,006 1,772,726
Occupancy expenses 1,088,438 927,287 726,049
Other operating expenses 2,497,692 2,340,098 2,253,920
Total noninterest expense $14,819,514 $13,275,572 $11,587,283
Income before income taxes $15,945472 $15,778,514 $15,186,144
Provision for income taxes (Note 8) 4,320,787 4,438,376 4,638,806
Net income $11,624,685 $11,340,138 $10,547,338
Basic earnings per share (Note 1) $3.71 $3.63 $3.38

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQuUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Balance, December 31, 2000
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income
Other comprehensive income,

unrealized gains on securities,

net of reclassification adjustment, .

net of tax (Note 3)

Total comprehensive income

"Ames
| National
< Corporation

Accumulated

Cash dividends declared, $1.66 per share |

Sale of 2,936 shares of treasury stock
Balance, December 31, 2001
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive income,

unrealized gains on securities,
net of reclassification adjustment,
net of tax (Note 3)
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared, $2.18 per share
Sale of 3,753 shares of treasury stock
Balance, December 31, 2002
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income
Other comprehensive income,
unrealized gains on securities,
net of reclassification adjustment,
net of tax (Note 3)
1,097,153
Cash dividends declared, $2.28 per share

Sale of 4,071 shares of treasury stock

Balance, December 31, 2003

Total comprehensive income $12,721,838

Additional Other Total
Comprehensive Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders'
Income Stock Capital Earnings Stock  Income (Loss) Equity
| E * | : : |
i $15,766,150 $25,428,994 w $44,036,378 ;5(1,677,605)% $2,623,544 $86,177,461 ‘
| 310,547,338 - § - 10,547,338 - - | 103547338
; | | : | |
| ; : l ; i
; | ! : !
i ! | ;
i | }
1,973,070 - ‘ - - - L 1,973,070 1,973,070 |
| $12,520,408 ‘ '
- - (5,186,705) - - (5,186,705)
- (35,966) - 146,800 - 110,834 .
15,766,150 25,393,028 49,397,011 (1,530,805) 4,596,614 93,621,998 |
$11,340,138 - - 11,340,138 - - 11,340,138
3,222,174 - -~ - - 3,222,174 3,222,174
$14,562,312
- - (6,819,605) - - (6,819,605)
- (39,014) - 197,165 - 158,151
15,766,150 25,354,014 53,917,544 (1,333,640} 7,818,788 101,522,856
$11,624,685 - - 11,624,685 - 11,624,685
1,097,153 - - - 1,097,153 1,097,153
- - (7,141,569) - - (7,141,569)
- (2,035) - 223,905 - 221,870

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

$15,766,150

$25,351,979

$38,400,660  $(1,109,735) $8,915,941

$107,324,995
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses
Amortization and accretion
Depreciation
Provision for deferred taxes
Securities gains, net
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease loans held for sale
(Increase) decrease in accrued income receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of securities available-for-sale
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities available-for-sale

Net decrease (increasej in interest bearing deposits in
financial institutions

Net (increase) in federal funds sold

Net decrease (increase) in loans

Purchase of bank premises and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in deposits

Increase (decrease) federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning
Ending

(Continued on Next Page)

2003 2002 2001
$11,624,685 $11,340,138 $10,547,338
645,447 688,431 897,540
563,612 51,495 (58,859)
1,030,377 996,180 642,835
(284,751) (200,013) (129,614)
(1,395,320) (889,923) (1,197,050)
1,854,307 2,582,434 (4,480,280)
6,770 128,336 1,043,261
250,293 (344,372) 820,285
$532,718 (549,337) (312,376)
$14,828,138 $13,803,369 $7,773,080

$(194,136,066)
9,299,986
108,868,412

(5,363,538)
12,120,000
(26,585,515)

(681,787)
(96,478,508)

68,926,148
(127,171)
(7,077,117)
221,870
$61,943,730
(19,706,640}

51,688,784
$31,982,144
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$(86,337,490)
26,635,715
34,855,926

(750,000)
(3,150,000)
(12,534,196)
(2,538,922)
(43,818,967)

$39,113,124
6,729,400
(6,755,449)
158,151
$39,245,226
9,229,628

42,459,156
$51,688,784

$(47,350,981)
23,282,181
47,385,595

98,174
(29,105,000)
24,554,301
(2,610,189)
(16,254,081)

$18,080,400
(23,411,245)
(5,123,026)
110,834
$(10,343,037)
13,684,124

28,775,032
$42,453,156
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows (CONTINUED)

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash payments for:

Interest

Income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING PoLICIES

Description of business:

Ames National Corporation and
subsidiaries (the Company) operates in the commercial banking
industry through its subsidiaries in Ames, Boone, Story City,
Nevada and Marshalltown, Iowa. Loan and deposit customers
are located primarily in Story, Boone, Hamilton and Marshall

counties and adjacent counties in lowa.

Segment information: The Company uses the “management
approach” for reporting information about segments in annual
and interim financial statements. The management approach is
based on the way the chief operating decision-maker organizes
segments within a company for making operating decisions and
assessing performance. Based on the “management approach”
model, the Company has determined that its business is
comprised of one operating segment: banking. The banking
segment generates revenues through personal, business, agricul-
tural and commercial lending, management of the investment
securities portfolio, providing deposit account services and

providing trust services.

Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of Ames National Corporation (the Parent
Company) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, First National

Bank, Ames, Jowa; State Bank & Trust Co., Nevada, lowa;

Ames National Corporation 2003 Annual Report

2003 2002 2001
I
|
' i
$10,504,715 $12,211,439 $19,749,270
4,553,669 4,725,572 4,321,320

Boone Bank & Trust Co., Boone, Iowa; Randall-Story State
Bank, Story City, lowa; and United Bank & Trust NA,
Marshalltown, lowa (collectively, the Banks). All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated

in consolidation.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material
estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change
in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for

loan losses and fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash

flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
amounts due from banks. The Company reports net cash flows
for customer loan transactions, deposit transactions and short

term borrowings with maturities of 90 days or less.

Securities available-for-sale: Securities available-for-sale consist
of equity securities and debt securities not classified as trading

or held-to-maturity and are carried at fair value. Unrealized
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holding gains and losses, net of deferred income taxes, are
reported in a separate component of accumulated other com-
prehensive income until realized. Realized gains and losses on
the sale of such securities are determined using the specific
identification method and are reflected in the consolidated
statements of income. Premiums and discounts are recognized
in interest income using the interest method over the period to

maturity or call date of the related security.

Unrealized losses judged to be other than temporary are charged

to operations.

Loans held for sale: Loans held for sale are the loans the Banks
have the intent to sell in the foreseeable future. They are carried
at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized
losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by
charges to income. Gains and losses on sales of loans are recog-
nized at settlement dates and are determined by the difference

between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the loans.

Loans: Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding,
net of deferred loan fees and the allowance for loan losses.
Interest on loans is credited to income as earned based on the
principal amount outstanding. The Banks’ policy is to discontin-
ue the accrual of interest income on any loan 90 days or more
past due unless the loans are well collateralized and in the
process of collection. Income on nonaccrual loans is subse-
quently recognized only to the extent that cash payments are
received. Nonaccrual loans are returned to an accrual status
when, in the opinion of management, the financial position of
the

reasonable doubt as to timely payment of principal or interest.

borrower indicates there is no longer any

Allowance for loan losses: The allowance for loan losses is

maintained at a level deemed appropriate by management to
provide for known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The
allowance is based upon a continuing review of past loan loss
experience, current economic conditions, and the underlying
collateral value securing the loans. Loans which are deemed to
be uncollectible are charged off and deducted from the

allowance. Recoveries on loans charged-off and the provision for

loan losses are added to the allowance.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current informa-
tion and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment
include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial
and construction loans by either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate,
the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the col-

lateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collec-
tively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company
does not separately identify individual consumer and residential

loans for impairment disclosures.

Premises and equipment: Premises and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense
is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods over
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Depreciable
lives range from 3 to 7 years for equipment and 15 to 39 years

for premises.

Trust department assets: Property held for. customers in fiduciary
or agency capacities is not included in the accompanying consol-

idated balance sheets, as such items are not assets of the Banks.

Income taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are meas-
ured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date.
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The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return,
with each entity computing its taxes on a separate company
basis. For state tax purposes, the Banks file franchise tax returns,

while the Parent Company files a corporate income tax return.

Comprehensive _income: Accounting principles generally
require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and
liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the
equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net
income, are components of comprehensive income. Gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities are reclassified to net
income as the gains or losses are realized upon sale of the

securities. Other-than-temporary impairment charges are reclas-

sified to net income at the time of the charge.

Fair value of financial instruments: The following methods

and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair

value disclosures:

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-bearing
deposits in financial institutions: The recorded amount of these

assets approximates fair value.

Securities available-for-sale: Fair values of securities available-
for-sale are based on bid prices published in financial newspapers,
bid quotations received from securities dealers, or quoted market
prices of similar instruments, adjusted for differences between

the quoted instruments and the instruments being valued.

Loans held for sale: The fair value of loans held for sale are

based on prevailing market prices.

Loans: The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting
scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using
estimated market discount rates, which reflect the credit and
interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The estimate of maturity
is based on the historical experience, with repayments for each
loan classification modified, as required, by an estimate of the

effect of current economic and lending conditions. The effect of
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nonperforming loans is considered in assessing the credit risk

inherent in the fair value estimate.

Deposit liabilities: Fair values of deposits with no stated maturity,
such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, savings and NOW
accounts, and money market accounts, are equal to the amount
payable on demand as of the respective balance sheet date. Fair
values of certificates of deposit are based on the discounted
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated
using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining
maturities. The fair value estimates do not include the benefit
that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit

liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market.

Other borrowings: The carrying amounts of federal funds pur-
chased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase
approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of

)

the instruments.

Accrued income receivable and accrued interest payable: The

carrying amounts of accrued income receivable and interest

payable approximate fair value.

Limitations:; Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time, based on relevant market information and information
about the financial instrument. Because no market exists for a
significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected
loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics
of various financial instruments, and other factors. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in- assumptions could

significantly affect the estimates.

Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share computations for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were
determined by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the years then
ended. The Company had no potentially dilutive securities out-

standing during the periods presented.
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The following information was used in the computation of basic
earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001. '

2003 2002 2001

Basic earnings per
share computation:

$11,624,685 $11,340,138 $10,547,338

Net income

‘Weighted average common

shares outstanding 3,131,224 3,127,285 3,123,885
Basic earnings per share $3.71 $3.63 $3.38

New ACCOUNTING PRONOCUNCEMENTS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement
149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging”. This Statement amends and clarifies financial
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and
for hedging activities under Statement 133. The Statement was
effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30,
2003. Implementation of the Statement on July 1, 2003 did not

have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement
150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement
established standards for how an issuer classifies and measures cer-
tain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and
equity and requires that certain freestanding financial instruments
be reported as liabilities in the balance sheet. For the Company, the
Statement was effective July 1, 2003 and implementation had no

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Board has
Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and

The Financial Accounting Standards issued
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation of
FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107, and a rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34.” This Interpretation elaborates on the
financial statements about its obligations under guarantees
issued and clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken. The effect of implementation on the

Company’s financial statements was not material.
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The Financial Accounting Standard Board has issued
Interpretation (FIN) No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No.
51.” FIN 46 establishes accounting guidance for consolidation of
variable interest entities (VIE) that function to support the activ-
ities of the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary of a VIE
entity is the entity that absorbs a majority of the VIE’s expected
losses, receives a majority of the VIE's expected residual returns, or
both, as a result of ownership, controlling interest, contractual
relationship or other business relationship with a VIE. Prior to the
implementation of FIN 46, VIE’s were generally consolidated by
an enterprise when the enterprise had a controlling financial
interest through ownership of a majority of voting interest in the
entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective for existing VIEs the
first period ending after December 15, 2003. The Company has
not identified any VIEs and the implementation of FIN 46 has

had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The Accounting Standards Executive Committee has issued
Statement of Position 03-3, Accounting for Certain Loans or
Debit Securities Acquired in a Transfer. This Statement applies
to all loans acquired in a transfer, including those acquired in the
acquisition of a bank or a branch, and provides that such loans
be accounted for at fair value with no allowance for loan losses,
or other valuation allowance, permitted at the time of acquisi-
tion. The difference between cash flows expected at the acqui-
sition date and the investment in the loan should be recognized
as interest income over the life of the loan. If contractually
required payments for principal and interest are less than
expected cash flows, this amount should not be recognized as a
yield adjustment, a loss accrual, or a valuation allowance. For
the Company, this Statement is effective for calendar year 2005
and, early adoption, although permitted, is not planned. No sig-
nificant impact is expected on the consolidated financial state-

ments at the time of adoption.

NoTE 2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND
Dute FROM BANKS

The Federal Reserve Bank requires member banks to maintain
certain cash and due from bank reserves. The subsidiary banks’

reserve requirements totaled approximately $14,375,000 and
$7,418,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.



Not1e 3. DeBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities available for sale and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2003 and 2002, are

summarized below:
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Gross Gross
Armortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value

2003: \
US. Treasury $2,158,571 $70,341 s - $2,228,912
U.S. government agencies 117,321,783 1,728,234 (412,733) 118,637,284
State and political subdivisions 103,411,430 3,087,981 (536,295) 105,963,116
Corporate bonds 59,991,655 3,639,909 (45,868) 63,585,696
Equity securities 26,080,188 6,796,873 (176,155) 32,700,906
$308,963,627 $15,323,338 $(1,171,051) $323,115,914

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
' Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value

2002: ‘ :
U.S. Treasury ‘ $4,058,028 $150,313 $ - $4,208,341
U.S. government agencies 82,797,531 2,982,650 - 85,780,181
State and political subdivisions 67,711,678 2,899,680 (95,702) 70,515,656
Corporate bonds 53,041,832 3,439,554 (124,469) 56,356,917
Equity securities 24,555,182 4,429,505 (1,270,756) 27,713,931
$232,164,251 $13,901,702 $(1,490,927) $244,575,026

——

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities available-for-sale as of December 31, 2003, are shown below by con-
tractual maturity. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
| $27,567,407 " $27,930,313

Due after one year i !

' 113,050,065 = 116,080,787

Due in one year or less

through five years

Due after five years

through ten years 97,729,993 101,651,232
Due after ten years 44,535,974 44,752,676
282,883,439 290,415,008

Equity securities 26,080,188 32,700,906

$308,963,627 $323,115,914
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At December 31, 2003 and 2002, securities with a carrying
value of approximately $49,758,000 and $39,076,000, respectively,
were pledged as collateral on public deposits, securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, and for other purposes as required or

permitted by law.

Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on sales of
available-for-sale were $1,395,320
respectively, in 2003, $1,087,290 and $197,367, respectively, in
2002, $1,200,323 and $3,273, respectively, in 2001.

securities and none

The components of income (loss) - net unrealized gains (loss-
es) on securities available-for-sale for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Unrealized holding gains ‘

arising during the period - $3,136,832 . $6,002,497 $4,329,954
Reclassification adjustment :

for net gains realized in

net income $(1,395,320) (889,923) (1,197,050)
Net unrealized gains

before tax effect 1,741,512 $5,112,574 $3,132,904
Tax effect (644,359)  (1,890,400) (1,159,834)
Other comprehensive

income net unrealized

gains on securities $1,097,153 $3,222,174 $1,973,070

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a

continuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2003 are summarized as follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury securities $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

U.S. government agencies 31,608,073 (412,733) - - 31,608,073 (412,733)
State and political subsidivisions 22,823,408 (507,233) 628,846 (29,062) 23,452,254 (536,2953)
Corporate obligations 15,160,687 (45,868) - - 15,160,687 (45,868)
Equity securities - - 3,242,200 (176,155) 3,242,200 (176,155)
$69,592,168 $(965,834) $3,871,046 $(205,217) $73,463,214  $(1,171,051)

For all of the above investment securities, the unrealized losses are generally due to changes in interest rates or general market

conditions, as such, are considered to be temporary, by the Company.
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NotE 4. LOANS RECEIVABLE

The composition of loans receivable at December 31, 2003 and
2002, is as follows:

2003 2002

Commercial and agricultural | $66,369,814 @ $66,119,092
Real estate | 272,790,845 © 250,087,154
Consumer 13,208,113 11,061,689
Other 10,034,281 ° 8,859,704

$362,403,053 $336,127,639
Less:
Allowance for loan losses (6,050,989) (5,757,694)
Deferred loan fees (818,945) (776,894)

$355,533,119  $329,593,051

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the year ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Balance, beginning | $5,757,604 ' $5,445,671 ' $5,373,167
Provision for loan losses 645,447 . 688,431 897,540
Recoveries of loans
charged-off 111,926 53,803 27,131
Loans charged-off (464,078)  (430,213) (852,167}

Balance, ending $6,050,989  $5,757,694  $5,445,671

Loans are made in the normal course of business to directors
and executive officers of the Company and to their affiliates.
The terms of these loans, including interest rates and collateral,
are similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions with

others and do not involve more than a normal risk of collectibility.

Loan transactions with related parties were as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Balance, beginning of year ' $7,791,668 $4,755,229
New loans 19425895 11,533,030
Repayments (16,650,452) (8,365,219)
Change in status 424,173 | (131,372)
Balance, end of year $10,991,284 $7,791,668
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At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had impaired
loans of approximately $2,187,075 and $2,409,000, respectively.
The allowance for loan losses related to these impaired loans
was approximately $134,000 and $212,000 at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The average balances of impaired
loans for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, were
$2,050,154 and $2,532,000, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 interest income which
would have been recorded under the original terms of such
loans was approximately $179,000, $160,000, and 243,000
respectively, with $177,000, $17,000, and 114,000 respective-
ly, recorded. Loans greater than 90 days past due and still accru-
ing interest were $431,000 and 394,00 at December 31, 2003
and 2002 respectively.

The amount the Company will ultimately realize from these
loans could differ materially from their carrying value because
of future developments affecting the underlying collateral or
the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans. As of December 31,
2003, there were no material commitments to lend additional

funds to customers whose loans were classified as impaired.

NoTte 5. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The major classes of bank premises and equipment and the total
accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,

are as follows:

2003 2002
Land 181,284,771 $1,284771
Buildings and improvements 9,120,088 9,178,368
Furniture and equipment ‘ 5,721,259 5,945,231
$16,126,118  $16,408,370
Less accumulated depreciation 7,748,311 7,681,973
$8,377,807 $8,726,397
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Note 6. DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2003, the maturities of time deposits are

as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2004 $155,017,653
2005 42,955,122
2006 17,372,503
2007 19,113,326
2008 8,877,984
Thereafter 143,946

$243,480,534

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows:

2003 2002 2001

NOW accounts $909,137  $1,155459  $2,060,963
Savings and money market 1,849,238 2,237,034 3,665,428
Time, $100,000 and over 1,807,047 1,897,855 3,329,175
Other time 5479756 6,106,777 8735748
$10,045,178 $11,397,125 $17,791,314

NoTe 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a stock purchase plan with the objective of
encouraging equity interests by officers, employees, and direc-
tors of the Company and its subsidiaries to provide additional
incentive to improve banking performance and retain qualified
individuals. The purchase price of the shares is the fair market
value of the stock based upon current market trading activity.
The terms of the plan provide for the issuance of up to 14,000
shares of common stock per year for a ten-year period com-

mencing in 1999 and continuing through 2008.

Prior to 2002, the Company had a qualified 401 (k) profit-shar-
ing plan and a qualified money purchase pension plan. The qual-
ified money purchase pension plan was merged into the 401 (k)
profit-sharing plan beginning January 1, 2002 with the merged

plans covering substantially all employees. The Company
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matches employee contributions up to a maximum of 2% of
qualified compensation and also contributes an amount equal to
5% of the participating employee’s compensation. In addition,
contributions can be made on a discretionary basis by the com-
bined Company on behalf of the employees. For the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, Company contri-
butions to the merged plans were approximately $659,000,
$607,000, and $473,000, respectively.

Norte 8. INcOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense for the year ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Current Deferred Total
2003:
Federal $3,482,686 $(266,898) $3,215,788
State 1,122,852 . (17,853) 1,104,999
$4,605,538 $(284,751) $4,320,787
2002:
Federal $3,819,350 $(184,965) $3,634,385
State 819,039 (15,048) 803,991
$4,638,389 $(200,013) $4,438,376
2001:
Federal $4,028,481 $(110,851) $3,917,630
State 739,939 (18,763) 721,176
$4,768,420  $(129,614)  $4,638,806
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Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to income
before income taxes is a result of the following for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
Computed “expected” T T ;
tax expense | $5,580,915 | $5,364,695 | $5,163,289
Tax exempt interest ' :
and dividends (1577,116)  (1,356,187)  (1,222,985)
State taxes
and other 316,988 429,868 698,502
$4,320,787 $4,438,376 34,638,806

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signif-
icant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred liabilities
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $1,741,344 $1,636,575
Other 297,041 161,867
Total gross deferred tax assets ©  $2,038,385 $1,798,442

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on securities  $(5,236,346)

Other (40,704)

Total gross deferred
tax liabilities

$(4,591,984)
(85,515)

$(5,277,050) $(4,677,499)

Net deferred tax liabilities  $(3,238,665) $(2,879,057)

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, income taxes currently
payable of approximately $390,000 and $338,000, respectively,

are included in accrued interest and other liabilities.
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NoTE 9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES
AND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RiIsK

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-
sheet risk in the normal course of business. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in

the balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonper-
formance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The
Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments
and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-sheet
instruments. A summary of the Company's commitments at

December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Commitments to extend credit $71,100,000 $59,410,000
Standby letters of credit 1,741,000 1,490,000
$72,841,000 $60,900,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a
customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total com-
mitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditwor-
thiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of

credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the party.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by
the Banks to guarantee the performance of a customer to a
third-party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral

held varies and is required in instances which the Banks deem
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necessary. In the event the customer does not perform in
accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third
party, the Banks would be required to fund the commitment.
The maximum potential amount of future payments the Banks
could be required to make is represented by the contractual
amount shown in the summary above. If the commitments were
funded, the Banks would be entitled to seek recovery from the
customer. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, no amounts have
been recorded as liabilities for the Bank’s potential obligations

under these guarantees.

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in
various legal proceedings. In the opinion of management, any
liability resulting from such proceedings would not have a

material adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk: The Banks originate real estate,
consumer, and commercial loans, primarily in Story, Boone,
Hamilton and Marshall Counties, Iowa, and adjacent counties.
Although the Banks have diversified loan portfolios, a substantial
portion of their borrowers’ ability to repay loans is dependent

upon economic conditions in the Banks’ market areas.

NoTtE 10. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary banks are subject to various
regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
can initiate certain mandatory - and possible additional
discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regula-
tory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Company's assets, liabilities and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are
also subject to regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s

capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings,

and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and each subsidiary bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table
below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations)
to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, that the Company and each
subsidiary bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which

they are subject.

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from
the federal banking regulators categorized the subsidiary banks
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as adequately capitalized
the banks must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I
risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table.
Management believes there are no conditions or events since
that notification that have changed the institution’s category.
The Company's and each of the subsidiary bank’s actual capital
amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are also

presented in the table.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003:

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust

First National Bank

Randall-Story State Bank

State Bank & Trust

United Bank & Trust

Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust

First National Bank

Randall-Story State Bank

State Bank & Trust

United Bank & Trust

Tier 1 capital (to average-weighted assets):
Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust

First National Bank

Randall-Story State Bank

State Bank & Trust

United Bank & Trust

For Capital

Ames
. National
%, Corporation

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$104,460 20.3% $41,261 8.0% - -
12,284 14.9 6,613 8.0 $8,267 10.0% !
40,460 16.0 20,264 8.0 25,330 100 .
| 7,902 15.5 4,069 8.0 5,087 10.0
¢ 11,509 18.2 5,048 8.0 6,310 10.0
{5,491 12.0 3,653 8.0 4,566 10.0
i $98,409 19.1% $20,630 4.0% - -
11,333 13.7 3,307 4.0 $4,960 6.0%
37,354 14.7 10,132 4.0 15,198 6.0
7,266 14.3 2,035 4.0 3,052 6.0
10,719 17.0 2,524 4.0 3,786 6.0
5,011 11.0 1,826 4.0 2,740 6.0
$98,409 13.0% $30,330 4.0% - -
11,333 10.2 4,442 4.0 $5,533 5.0%
37,354 9.8 15,179 4.0 18,974 5.0
7,266 10.2 2,840 4.0 3,551 5.0
10,719 9.9 4,343 4.0 5,429 5.0
5,011 7.3 2,741 4.0 3,426 5.0
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002:

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust
First National Bank
Randall-Story State Bank
State Bank & Trust
United Bank & Trust

Tier 1 capital {to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust
First National Bank
Randall-Story State Bank
State Bank & Trust
United Bank & Trust

Tier 1 capital (to average-weighted assets):

Consolidated

Boone Bank & Trust
First National Bank
Randall-Story State Bank
State Bank & Trust
United Bank & Trust

For Capital

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio \ Amount Ratio Amount Ratic
$99,398 21.8% $36,439 8.0% $ - -

11,516 15.3 6,006 8.0 7,508 10.0%
38,650 16.4 18,878 8.0 23,598 10.0
7,684 15.9 3,855 8.0 4,819 10.0
11,087 17.1 5,181 8.0 6,476 10.0
4,642 31.0 1,198 8.0 1,497 10.0
$93,704 20.6% $18,220 4.0% - -
10,577 14.1 3,003 4.0 $4,504 6.0%
35,700 15.1 9,439 4.0 14,159 6.0
7,081 14.7 1,927 4.0 2,891 6.0
10,276 15.9 2,590 4.0 3,886 6.0
4,476 299 599 4.0 898 6.0
$93,704 14.1% $26,669 4.0% - -
10,577 10.6 3,995 4.0 34,993 5.0%
35,700 9.8 14,565 4.0 18,206 5.0
7,081 11.0 2,585 4.0 3,231 5.0
10,276 10.0 4,126 4.0 5,157 5.0
4,476 18.1 990 4.0 1,238 5.0

NoTe 11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments (as described in Note 1) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

were as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits
Securities available-for-sale
Loans, net

Loans held for sale
Accrued income receivable

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits

Other borrowings

Accrued interest

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit
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2003 2002

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value
$31,982,144 $31,982,144 $51,688,784 $51,688,784
' 20,380,000 20,380,000 32,500,000 32,500,000
6,363,538 6,363,538 1,000,000 1,000,000
© 323,115,914 323,115,914 244,575,026 244 575,026
355,533,119 358,891,066 329,593,051 338,551,554
839,139 859,139 2,713,446 2,713,446
5,842,247 5,842,247 5,849,017 5,849,017
619,548,527 623,208,058 550,622,379 555,271,000
18,198,403 18,198,403 18,325,574 18,325,574
1,361,819 1,361,819 1,527,752 1,527,752
Notional Unrealized Notional Unrealized
Amount Gain (Loss) Amount Gain (Loss)

$71,100,000 $ - $59,410,000 $ -

1,741,000 - 1,490,000 -
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Note 12. AMEs NATIONAL CORPORATION (PARENT
ComPANY ONLY) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information relative to the Parent Company’s balance sheets at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and statements of income and

cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2003, is as follows:

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002
ASSETS |

|

Cash and due from banks : $1,213 | $6,602
Interest-bearing deposits in banks : 1,588,995 } 1,396,656
Securities available-for-sale ‘ 33,654,060 27,874,394
Investment in bank subsidiaries 76,105,383 | 73,646,869
Loans receivable, net - 706,968
Bank premises and equipment, net - 475,551 517,707
Accrued income receivable 151,335 213,133
Other assets : 7,198 155,785
Total assets $111,983,735 $104,518,114
LIABILITIES
Dividends payable $1,441,204 $1,376,752
Deferred income taxes 2,528,955 1,266,922
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 688,581 351,584
Total liabilities $4,658,740 $2,995,258
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock $15,766,150 $15,766,150
Additional paid-in capital 25,351,979 25,354,014
Retained earnings 58,400,660 53,917,544
Treasury stock, at cost (1,108,735) (1,333,640)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income 8,915,941 7,818,788
Total stockholders’ equity $107,324,995 $101,522,856
Total liabilities and
stockholder’s equity $111,983,735 $104,518,114
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2003 2002 2001
Operating income: :
Equity in net income } :
of bank subsidiaries | $10,440,180 $10,108,107 +  $9,122,748 |
Interest | 542,640 | 745,488 953,071 |
Dividends 962,049 979,071+ 795411 |
Rents j 140,147 ¢ 150,894 245,882 |
Securities gains, net 1,207,735 881,938 1,092,808 -
$13,292,751  $12,865,498 ° $12,209,920
Operating expenses:
Occupancy expense $163,018 $165,447 $178,802
Other 1,200,048 1,154,913 923,780
$1,363,066 $1,320,360  $1,102,582
Income before
income taxes $11,929,685 $11,545,138  $11,107,338
Income tax expense 305,000 205,000 560,000
Net income $11,624,685  $11,340,138 $10,547,338
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2003 2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net income $11,624,685 g $11,340,138 $10,547,338
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash t
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 77132 | 80,620 66,781
Provision for loan losses (16,000 | - -
Amoritization and accretion, net (8,014) (16,060) (13,493)
Provision for deferred taxes ’ (36,385) | (56,023) -
Amortization and accretion, net ‘ (16,000) ‘ (16,060) (13,493)
Provision for deferred taxes ’ (8,014 | (56,023) -
Securities gains, net (1,207,735) (881,938) (1,092,808)
Undistributed net income of bank subsidiaries (2,572,180) (4,130,107) (1,994,748)
(Increase) decrease in accrued income receivable ) 61,798 1,446,277 (18,340)
(Increase) decrease in other assets ‘ 148,587 (130,281) 308,207
Increase (decrease) in accrued expense payable

and other liabilities 336,997 246,165 103,631
Net cash provided by operating activities $8,408,885 $7,898,791 $7,906,568
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of securities available-for-sale $(7,292,720) $(7,334,938) $(10,244,488)
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale 4,067,605 8,611,304 4,025,880
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities

available-for-sale 2,170,435 2,196,163 2,024,595
(Increase) decrease in interest bearing deposits in banks (192,339) 769,809 (1,017,101)
(Increase) decrease in loans 722,968 (448,741) 2,400,844
Purchase of bank premises and equipment (34,976) (95,226) (79,194)
Investment in bank subsidiaries (1,000,000) (5,000,000) -
Net cash (used in) investing activities $(1,559,027) $(1,301,629) $(2,889,464)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid S(7,077,117) © (6755449) “(5.123,026)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock 221,870 158,151 110,834
Net cash (used in) financing activities $(6,855,247) $(6,597,298) $(5,012,192)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,389) (136) 4,912
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 6,602 6,738 1,826
Ending $1,213 $6,602 $6,738

EZ
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Note 13. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL

DATA (UNAUDITED)

Total interest income
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net income

Earnings per common share

Total interest income
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision fdr loan losses
Net income

Earnings per common share

" National
Corporation

2003
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
| $8,714233 | $8,876,124 | 98818046 | $8,905,337
2,690,209 [ 2,723,323 2,467,155 | 2,458,095
6,024,024 | 6,152,801 6,350,891 6,447,242
119,745 305,995 87,000 132,707
2,870,325 2,649,229 3,240,642 2,864,489
0.92 0.85 1.03 091

2002
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
| $9,095844 39,170,613 $9,051,618 $8952,508
w 3,062,094 | 3,031,178 | 2,809,797 2,759,901
6,033,750 6,139,435 6,241,821 6,192,697
104,219 111,265 80,640 392,307
2,940,930 2,740,935 2,952,283 2,705,990
0.94 0.88 0.94 0.87
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CoMPANY ADDRESS
Ames National Corporation
PO. Box 846

405 Fifth Street

Ames, IA 50010

Telephone (515) 232-6251

Fax (515) 663-3033

Email Info@amesnational.com
Website www.amesnational.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Des Moines, lowa

COUNSEL
Nyemaster, Goode, Voigts, West, Hansell & O'Brien P.C.

Des Moines, lowa

ANNUAL MEETING

The Board of Directors of Ames National Corporation has
established Wednesday, April 28, 2004, at 4:30 p.m. as the date of
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Registration will begin at 4:00
p.m. We invite all shareholders to attend the meeting, which will be
held at Reiman Gardens, 1407 Elwood Drive, Ames, [owa.

MARKET MAKERS

Ames National Corporation’s common stock is traded in the over-
the-counter market under the symbol “ATLO.” Market makers in
the stock include US Bancorp Piper Jaffray, 515 Grand Ave., Ames,
1A 50010 (515-233-4064), Howe Barnes Investments, Inc., 135 So.
LaSalle, Chicago, IL 60603 (800-800-4693), and Monroe
Securities, Inc., 47 State St., Rochester, NY 14614 (800-766-5560).

Form 10-K AND OTHER INFORMATION

The Company submits an annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission on Form 10-K. Shareholders may obtain
written copies of Form 10-K without charge by writing to Ames
National Corporation, PO. Box 846, 405 Fifth Street, Ames, lowa
50010, attention John P Nelson, Vice President. This form is also

available at www.amesnational.com.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

On February 27, 2004, the Company had approximately 615 share-
holders of record. The Company’s common stock is traded in the
over-the-counter market under the symbol “ATLO”. Trading in the
Company's common stock is, however, relatively limited. Based on
information provided to and gathered by the Company on an infor-
mal basis, the Company believes that the high and low sales price
for the common stock on a per share basis during the last two years
is as follows (which prices do not include retail mark-up, mark

down, or commissions):

2003 2002
Sales Price Sales Price
Quarter  High Low Quarter High Low
o st $48.90 $46.05 Ist $40.00  $39.00
2nd 55.25 51.50 2nd 45.00 40.00
3rd 57.25 53.10 3rd 46.75 43.00
4th 59.75 56.75 4th 47.50 45.90

The Company declared aggregate annual cash dividends in 2003 and
2002 of $7,142,000 and $6,820,000, respectively, or $2.28 per share
in 2003 and $2.18 per share in 2002. In February 2004, the Company
declared an aggregate cash dividend of $1,441,000 or $.46 per share.

Quarterly dividends declared during the last two years were as follows:

2003 2002
Quarter Cash dividends Cash dividends
declared per share declared per share
st | $0.44 $0.42
2nd 0.92 0.88
3rd 0.46 0.44
4th 0.46 0.44

The decision to declare any such cash dividends in the future and
the amount thereof rests within the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company and will be subject to, among other
things, the future earnings, capital requirements and financial con-
dition of the Company and certain regulatory restrictions imposed
on the payment of dividends by the Banks. Such restrictions are
discussed in greater detail in Management’s Discussion — Liquidity

and Capital Resources.
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